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          2                 CHAIRPERSON PROVENZANO:  Good

          3  morning.  We almost made it.  It's only 10:10.

          4                 I am Council Member Madeline

          5  Provenzano, and I Chair the Committee on Housing and

          6  Buildings.

          7                 Today, the Committee is conducting

          8  its second hearing on a bill dealing with the

          9  potential adoption of a model code, model building

         10  code for the City of New York.

         11                 I know, most of you are here, and

         12  were here for the press conference, we've moved that

         13  up to around 12 o'clock.  It's tough to have a press

         14  conference without any press.  So, at 12 o'clock

         15  they should all be here.

         16                 Proposed Intro. No. 478A.  It's a

         17  local law, to amend the administrative code of the

         18  City of New York in relation to enacting the New

         19  York City plumbing code, based on the 2003 edition

         20  of the Intentional Plumbing Code, published by the

         21  International Code Council, and enacting

         22  administrative provisions applicable to such New

         23  York City plumbing code and to such other codes as

         24  may hereafter be enacted by the City based on the

         25  2003 editions of the International Building Code,
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          2  the International Fuel Gas Code, the International

          3  Mechanical Code, the International Residential Code,

          4  and the International Existing Building Code.

          5                 This hearing will continue the

          6  discussion and exploration of the adoption of a

          7  model building code for New York City.  This

          8  legislation was revised in part to address

          9  administrative provisions that reflect concerns

         10  expressed by those who interact and do business with

         11  the Department of Buildings.  And to address issues

         12  and concerns raised by those involved in the

         13  plumbing and gas piping trades in the City.

         14                 The Committee on Housing and

         15  Buildings expects to hear testimony from Patricia

         16  Lancaster, Commissioner of Buildings;

         17  representatives of model code organizations;

         18  architects; engineers; fire safety professionals;

         19  labor; real estate industry; and of course,

         20  representation of persons interested in this issue.

         21                 As many of you know, I have had the

         22  pleasure of being a part of this Administration's

         23  efforts to review the existing alternatives, and to

         24  make recommendations toward the adoption or

         25  nonadoption of a model code.  Cross out nonadoption.
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          2

          3                 It has been a pleasure serving with

          4  the many dedicated and enlightened professionals,

          5  most of whom volunteer their time towards this

          6  effort.

          7                 And I think it's also necessary for

          8  me, at this time, it's also a distinct pleasure, to

          9  publicly thank and commend Commissioner Lancaster,

         10  Marzio Penza -- is Marzio here? -- His staff, the

         11  entire plumbing community, George Reilly, Stew

         12  O'Brien, (applause).  And thanks to their expertise,

         13  all of those folks in the art of compromise, we all

         14  sit here today, or 98 percent of us sit here today,

         15  united in our efforts.

         16                 I would also like to give a

         17  particular thank you to Robert Jackson, Council

         18  Member Robert Jackson, for his (applause) open-

         19  mindedness, his willingness to listen, and for his

         20  expertise in the art of compromise.

         21                 I think that what we need to do, what

         22  we need to concentrate -- we know that there's

         23  another bill coming, that this is only the second

         24  part, that there's a third part -- but I think we

         25  all have to get serious about getting this
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          2  legislation passed, and move on to the final portion

          3  of the bill.  This is something that we all know we

          4  have to do for the well being of this City.

          5                 Having said that, I do ask once again

          6  that presenters be mindful of time limits.  We will

          7  be putting, after the Administration speaks, we'll

          8  be putting on a three- minute clock.

          9                 We also ask that every presenter be

         10  afforded the opportunity to speak uninterrupted.

         11  Without any negative comments. And we ask that you

         12  be considerate of those that speak, whether you

         13  agree or not.  Hopefully, we all agree with

         14  everybody that will speak today, but I'm not so

         15  sure.

         16                 Finally, as I've previously stated,

         17  this Committee's ultimate goal is to improve

         18  building safety.  Whether at the design stage, the

         19  construction stage, or during the course of a

         20  building's occupancy.  In this regard, I hope that

         21  we will eventually have one piece of legislation

         22  that can be supported by the entire Council and that

         23  will result in a better New York City building code

         24  for other jurisdictions to emulate.

         25                 If you wish to testify, please, you
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          2  must sign one of these little sheets.  And I'm

          3  requesting, to make all of our lives a little easier

          4  and to make things move more smoothly, that we only

          5  have one spokesperson per organization.

          6                 I am joined today by my Committee

          7  Members, Council Member Tony Avella; Council Member

          8  Charles Barron, who is not on the Committee, but is

          9  certainly very interested as a participant; Council

         10  Member Letitia James; Council Member Robert Jackson.

         11                 And having said that, we are joined

         12  by Commissioner Patricia Lancaster who will be our

         13  first person to testify today. Welcome.

         14                 COMMISSIONER LANCASTER: Thank you.

         15  Good morning Chairwoman Provenzano and Members of

         16  the Committee on Housing and Buildings.  My name is

         17  Patricia Lancaster, and I am the Commissioner of the

         18  City's Department of Buildings.

         19                 Thank you for this opportunity to

         20  testify in support of Intro. No. 478A, relating to a

         21  new building code for the City of New York.  I'd

         22  also like to take this opportunity to thank all of

         23  the members of the New York City Model Code Program

         24  for their presence here and their continuing support

         25  for this momentous effort.
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          2                 The last time we gathered to discuss

          3  a new building code for the City of New York, this

          4  room was filled with conflict. But one theme common

          5  to all of those who testified, either for or

          6  against, was that a comprehensive building code

          7  revision raises concerns beyond technical

          8  construction standards that are of concern to

          9  architects, engineers, and builders.

         10                 Rather, the code affects areas that

         11  have an impact on, and that are important to all New

         12  Yorkers.  The intensity and resolve underlying all

         13  of these arguments resonated loudly  with me and my

         14  staff.  I want you to know that you were heard, and

         15  that we refocused our efforts as a result.  I

         16  believe you now have a bill before you that the vast

         17  majority of those affected can enthusiastically

         18  support.

         19                 As I stated during the last hearing,

         20  the New York City Model Code Program was established

         21  to parallel the process used during the adoption of

         22  the New York City Electrical Code.  The Model Code

         23  Program is comprised of over 400 volunteer

         24  professionals from labor, the real estate industry,

         25  registered architects and professional engineers,
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          2  and government.

          3                 This committed group of volunteers

          4  had donated thousands of hours over the past two and

          5  one half years on 13 technical committees.  Together

          6  with my staff, they have conducted line- by- line

          7  reviews of the existing 1,000- page building code,

          8  the many volumes of the International family of

          9  codes, and other relevant codes and standards.

         10                 All of the Technical Committee

         11  proposals are reviewed, and must be accepted by an

         12  overseeing Management Committee prior to their

         13  inclusion in a proposed building code. And of

         14  course, subsequently passed by the City Council.

         15                 As you may know, we also established

         16  a system of Advisory Committees in order to inform

         17  the building code development program of those

         18  issues that have public policy implications beyond

         19  the technical issues.

         20                 On important example of this is our

         21  Risk and Security Advisory Committee, Chaired by

         22  Brian Meacham, head of ARUP Risk Consulting, one of

         23  the preeminent risk consulting companies in the

         24  world.  This committee has, and will continue to

         25  consider how best to integrate security measures
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          2  into buildings.  One particular area of focus for

          3  this committee will be this week's NIST

          4  recommendations with respect to the World Trade

          5  Center collapse.

          6            Other Model Code Advisory Committees

          7  include a Committee on Sustainability, a Labor

          8  Committee, and a City Council Advisory Committee.

          9                 The dialogue established by the broad

         10  memberships of these committees had created an

         11  effective and an inclusive forum for the many

         12  stakeholders who have an interest in the City's

         13  Building Code.

         14                 Since the hearing of November 30th,

         15  we have broadened our program to include a greater

         16  diversity of interests. We established a Labor

         17  Advisory Committee to provide a dedicated code forum

         18  for addressing labor issues.  This Advisory

         19  Committee has provided an active venue for union-

         20  related issues within the Model Code Program

         21  structure.  Ed Malloy is joined by Gary LaBarbera as

         22  labor representative on our Managing Committee.

         23                 I am pleased to announce that, as a

         24  result of our further discussions with the plumbers

         25  union, George Reilly, President of Plumbers Local 1,
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          2  has joined our Managing Committee in addition to the

          3  Labor Advisory Committee.  We are now widening our

          4  Advisory Committees even further for the remainder

          5  of the code development program.

          6                 For example, we are assembling an

          7  Affordable Housing Advisory Committee.  I am pleased

          8  to announce that Bertha Lewis from ACORN, and Bernie

          9  Carr from NYSAFAH have agreed to serve as co- chairs

         10  for this committee, and thus, become members of our

         11  Managing Committee as well.

         12                 One of the major issues discussed at

         13  last Spring's hearing was whether the IBC family of

         14  codes or the NFPA 5000 was a safer or better code

         15  for New York.  At the end of the day, this question

         16  in my review is irrelevant.  This is because the new

         17  Building Code for the City of New York will be an

         18  amalgam of the best of the current code, the best of

         19  the IBC, and the best of the NFPA standards.  No one

         20  code is a victor or a loser.  We will be relying on

         21  many sources to develop the best code for New York

         22  City.

         23                 As you know, the New York City

         24  Building Code has not been comprehensively revised

         25  for almost 40 years, since 1968.  As a result, while
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          2  it is considered to be technically one of the most

          3  stringent in the nation, it is also widely

          4  acknowledged to be one of the most cumbersome,

          5  obscure, and difficult to utilize.

          6                 This has made it expensive to build

          7  here.  It's complexity is an impediment to growth,

          8  development and safety.

          9                 The bill before you represents a

         10  major step towards developing a rationally organized

         11  code that architects and engineers from all over the

         12  nation can easily understand and use.

         13                 Intro. No. 478A is also a blueprint

         14  bill that contains, that not only contains revisions

         15  and a reorganization of our existing Building Code,

         16  but also lays out a design for regular and periodic

         17  updates to our City's code.  It thus anticipates

         18  technological change and the development of new

         19  standards.  It does this by institutionalizing a

         20  regular, periodic process of review and change that

         21  reflects the City's dynamic and changing needs and

         22  environment.

         23                 These changes will be analyzed

         24  through a similar process and procedure to those

         25  used in the development of this bill, and will be
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          2  brought before the City Council as needed to update

          3  the City's code.

          4                 I want to outline for you some of the

          5  more significant changes in the bill before you that

          6  will make it easier to work with the Department and

          7  reduce the cost of constructing and renovating

          8  buildings in the City.  While some of these changes

          9  are small, together, they lift significant burdens

         10  from homeowners, the construction industry,

         11  licensees and other members of the development

         12  community.

         13                 In the Administrative section:

         14                 A new provision allows the Department

         15  to issue work permits for up to two years from the

         16  current one- year maximum.

         17                 License terms for most trades are

         18  extended from the current one- year term to three

         19  years.

         20                 New material and equipment that have

         21  been evaluated and accepted by nationally recognized

         22  organizations such as the Underwriters Laboratory,

         23  may be accepted in New York City without the need

         24  for costly and time- consuming approval by the

         25  Department's Materials and Equipment Acceptance
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          2  division, or MEA.

          3                 The Department may issue partial

          4  Certificates of Occupancy for specific floors in

          5  buildings constructed before 1938. This closes a

          6  major loophole.  Many buildings constructed before

          7  1938 do not have a C of O, and currently, if a floor

          8  is renovated to accommodate a new use or occupancy,

          9  an owner must get a C of O for the entire building.

         10  This can be a difficult, costly, and onerous process

         11  if all the tenants in the building do not cooperate.

         12    By being able to issue a partial C of O for a

         13  specific floor in safely occupied buildings, we have

         14  removed a major hardship.

         15                 And lastly, in the Administration

         16  department, fees are consolidated in easy- to- read

         17  charts and fee rebate incentives included in order

         18  to encourage energy and water savings in designing

         19  building systems.

         20                 In the plumbing section:

         21                 The ne Plumbing Code incorporates

         22  several enhancements that will increase the safety

         23  of New Yorkers and utilize the latest engineering

         24  practice without increasing costs. To outline a few

         25  of the changes:
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          2                 The code requires that glazing of

          3  shower enclosures and doors, and whirlpool bathtubs

          4  conform to nationally recognized standards.

          5                 The code allows multiple fixture

          6  drains to be circuit- vented.  This cuts down on

          7  materials and costs, and allows for more efficient

          8  engineering of venting systems.

          9                 The code promotes water conservation

         10  by allowing the recycling of rain water and certain

         11  waste water for nonpotable uses.

         12                 A provision is made for overflow

         13  drains in order to protect roofs should the primary

         14  drain be blocked.

         15                 Passage of this bill starts a process

         16  that will culminate in a second "Completion Bill",

         17  and an new Building Code in place for the summer of

         18  2006.  By accomplishing this undertaking, the many

         19  participating organizations in the program which are

         20  outlined in our boards here, will have achieved the

         21  remarkable task of reviewing and rewriting our

         22  entire Building Code.

         23                 The entire City of New York must be

         24  rewarded with the adoption of this new Building

         25  Code, and there is no good reason to delay.
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          2                 As I state before, it is my job to

          3  see that the City's best interests are served.  With

          4  that desire in mind, the many participants of the

          5  program have set aside any differences and worked

          6  towards a shared vision of a better New York.  I ask

          7  that you also embrace this shared vision and pass

          8  Intro. No. 478A with all due haste.

          9                 I thank you, and I'll be pleased to

         10  take any questions. (applause)

         11                 CHAIRPERSON PROVENZANO: We're going

         12  to hear testimony from Chief Howard Hill, and then

         13  we'll take questions.

         14                 CHIEF HILL: Good morning Chairperson

         15  Provenzano, and Council Members.  My name is Howard

         16  Hill.  I am the Deputy Assistant Chief of Fire

         17  Prevention in the New York City Fire Department.

         18                 Thank you for the opportunity to

         19  speak with you today about the proposed bill, Intro.

         20  No. 478A, and to once again express the FDNY's

         21  support for the City's Building Code revision

         22  efforts.

         23                 The Fire Department has been an

         24  active participant in the City's efforts to

         25  modernize it's Building Code.  Our concern has been
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          2  to ensure that the new code will serve to protect

          3  the safety of the public and our firefighters.  We

          4  assigned 15 Chief Officers to the Technical

          5  Committees established by the Department of

          6  Buildings.  These Chief Officers brought the FDNY's

          7  public safety perspective to the Building Code

          8  revision process.  I believe all of the participants

          9  in the Building Code revision process have

         10  demonstrated a strong commitment to a new code that

         11  enhances public safety.

         12                 The code revision process is designed

         13  to ensure that the document that will ultimately be

         14  proposed as the new New York City Building Code,

         15  will incorporate safety standards appropriate to New

         16  York City.

         17                 DOB, the FDNY, private industry, and

         18  the other participants in the Building Code revision

         19  project have devoted more than two years to this

         20  process.  As a result, there is a very strong

         21  momentum for modernizing the City's Building Code.

         22  For all these reasons, we strongly support Intro.

         23  No. 478A.

         24                 The Fire Department has undertaken a

         25  fire code revision project to modernize the City's
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          2  Fire Prevention Code. Both the Building and Fire

          3  Code revision process take into consideration

          4  existing and developing standards for the safety of

          5  public and firefighters.  We are confident that the

          6  Building Code revision process, and the Fire Code

          7  revision project that we are undertaking, will

          8  result in new codes that will ensure a level of

          9  safety that exceeds any other existing codes.

         10                 Thank you for allowing us this time

         11  to speak with you today. And I would be happy to

         12  answer any questions as well. (applause)

         13                 CHAIRPERSON PROVENZANO: Council

         14  Member Avella.

         15                 COUNCIL MEMBER AVELLA: Thank you

         16  Madam Chair.

         17                 I really don't have a question,

         18  having sat through numerous hearings on this item.

         19  I'm very well versed on it. But I did want to make

         20  one general comment, and I also speak for the Chair,

         21  but she can speak for herself.  I'm disappointed

         22  that we're not voting this bill out today.  I think

         23  it's about time that the Council on this end move

         24  along with the Administration to work together to

         25  get this legislation enacted.  (applause)
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          2                 All I can say on the record is I

          3  think that the leadership of the Council really has

          4  to move their butt and get this thing done.  Thank

          5  you Madam Chair.

          6                 CHAIRPERSON PROVENZANO: Thank you,

          7  Council Member.

          8                 Council Member Barron.

          9                 COUNCIL MEMBER BARRON: Thank you very

         10  much Madam Chair.  I just wanted to ask a question

         11  around the Affordable Housing Committee that you're

         12  putting together.  Because in communities like East

         13  New York and Harlem, I just want to make sure that

         14  the merger of the two sets of standards or codes,

         15  how will it impact the neighborhoods -- it appears

         16  that it would be beneficial, but if you could just

         17  elaborate a little more on how we can assure that

         18  buildings in our neighborhoods are of high standard,

         19  but also very, very affordable.

         20                 COMMISSIONER LANCASTER: It's an

         21  important consideration.  I think for all of New

         22  York.  And the Committee on Residential, Chaired by

         23  quite an advocate actually for affordable housing,

         24  Herbert Mendell, has been taking into consideration

         25  the economy of trying to build affordable housing
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          2  more economically.

          3                 I think the bigger picture answer to

          4  your question, though, is that one of the reasons

          5  we're forming and Affordable Housing Advisory

          6  Committee, is so that that community can inform that

          7  committee of what their concerns are, and what they

          8  want to see happen.  The committee can mull it over

          9  and then direct the different 13 Technical

         10  Committees on the specific things for their

         11  committee.

         12                 So in other words, the committee

         13  chaired by  Bernie Carr and Bertha Lewis will be a

         14  clearing house if you will, for ideas on affordable

         15  housing and give you a venue.  So I would invite you

         16  to get in touch with the Chairs and let them know of

         17  your concern.

         18                 CHAIRPERSON BARRON: Well thank you

         19  very much, because I think that's been one of my

         20  concerns in my neighborhood. While we want the

         21  standards up, it's always a real challenge when you

         22  look at fees and processes and standards of

         23  materials.  And then when you hear from developers

         24  the cost of these things, if you want some good

         25  valuable stuff, then the housing has to be at a
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          2  certain price.  So that's going to be an interesting

          3  balancing act I think.

          4                 COMMISSIONER LANCASTER: I think

          5  that's right, and we have been balancing the safety,

          6  making sure that things are safe. I think that the

          7  very process of the code program itself has people

          8  on opposing sides to form a balance, and I think

          9  that we've gone some way toward achieving them.

         10                 COUNCIL MEMBER BARRON: Right.  And I

         11  think it's a move in the right direction, and I hope

         12  it continues to evolve and we have the best codes in

         13  the world.  And I think we can establish that,

         14  working together.  Thank you very much.

         15                 CHAIRPERSON PROVENZANO: Council

         16  Member Jackson.

         17                 COUNCIL MEMBER JACKSON: Thank you

         18  Madam Chair, and good morning everyone.  Good to see

         19  you.

         20                 First of all, I'd like to say that I

         21  appreciate the fact that many of the issues and

         22  concerns that were brought to your attention with

         23  respect to the plumbers, the steam fitters, ACORN,

         24  and other constituencies were listened to and a lot

         25  of their suggestions and their participation in the
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          2  process has been incorporated into this proposed

          3  Intro. No. 478A.  I'm very, very pleased to hear

          4  that.  In fact, they've communicated to me directly

          5  that they feel that they could support this Intro,

          6  and as a result of that, as someone that was

          7  advocating for more inclusiveness, I'm very, very

          8  happy to hear that.

          9                 I am concerned, though, not in this

         10  particular matter, but down the road when it deals

         11  with structures, the issues that we raised before,

         12  and I know that those will be addressed at a later

         13  date.  I plan to be continuously involved to insure

         14  that the safety concerns of the people of New York

         15  City and especially, our First Responders, the

         16  firefighters and all the others, are considered when

         17  we address that next aspect of the Building Code

         18  that we're going to adopt.

         19                 But I have a couple of questions.  My

         20  first question is how if Howard Hill, the Deputy

         21  Chief of Fire Prevention.  Mr. Hill, I wanted to ask

         22  you, you read your statement, and I wrote a question

         23  next to the statement.  You said, "The Fire

         24  Department has undertaken a code revision project to

         25  modernize the City's Fire Prevention Code in both
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          2  the Building and Fire revision process takes into

          3  consideration the existing and developing standards

          4  for safety".  Blah Blah Blah.  My question to you

          5  is, what committee structure is that done with?  And

          6  are the unions involved in that, meaning UFA and

          7  UFOA.  What committee process you have to bring this

          8  about?

          9                 CHIEF HILL: We're bringing in the

         10  UFOA, they have been contacted to participate in

         11  this process.  They are also the input for the

         12  Building Code as well as the Fire Code.  And that's

         13  what we've taken to bring the union's end in.

         14                 COUNCIL MEMBER JACKSON: But what

         15  process are you using?  I mean, I'm sorry, just

         16  identify yourself if you don't mind.

         17                 MR. BASIL: Julien Basil, Counsel to

         18  the Fire Department.

         19                 We've, in order to expedite our

         20  process, we're doing a little bit differently than

         21  the Building Department.  But we are, going to, we

         22  have an Advisory Committee on which both UFA and

         23  UFOA have been invited to participate as well as

         24  other unions and trades that are interested in the

         25  revisions of the Fire Code.  And, we expect very
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          2  shortly, to be distributing drafts of the

          3  International Fire Code with proposed amendments to

          4  interested parties in the near future and give them

          5  an opportunity to comment.  And at that point, we'll

          6  take it from there in terns of bringing together

          7  various viewpoints.

          8                 The Fire Code is somewhat different

          9  than the Building Code.  It is more oriented towards

         10  operation, maintenance, inspection and testing.  And

         11  in that regard, in some respects, it's provisions

         12  are less controversial than the Building Code.

         13                 But we will work with all

         14  organizations and interest groups in terms of trying

         15  to meet their concerns and develop a product that

         16  everyone feels will best protect the people of New

         17  York City.  Obviously, we're bringing a perspective

         18  of fire safety. That's always our primary concern.

         19  But we're aware and we're going to try to accomplish

         20  in the same manner that the Building Department has.

         21    A final document that addresses cost and other

         22  interests as well as fire safety.

         23                 COUNCIL MEMBER JACKSON: So the Fire

         24  Code that you're going to be working on, is it, or

         25  is it not part of this here, 478A is that correct?
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          2                 MR. BASIL: That's correct.

          3                 COUNCIL MEMBER JACKSON: Okay.  Will

          4  it be part of a future bill that's introduced?  Will

          5  that fall under structures? Or is it separate and

          6  apart from the Building Code?

          7                 MR. BASIL: It is a separate code, and

          8  we will be introducing a bill hopefully later this

          9  year to amend the Fire Code.  And we'll have to see

         10  exactly whether it will be presented at once or in

         11  part, but we are going to proceed in that manner.

         12                 COUNCIL MEMBER JACKSON: So the Fire

         13  Code basically stands alone, is that correct?

         14                 MR. BASIL: That's correct.

         15                 COUNCIL MEMBER JACKSON: Okay.  Now,

         16  let me just go back.  You said you have an Advisory

         17  Committee.  And I know, Madeline, this is not

         18  dealing with the Fire Code, but the door was open.

         19  I just want to seek a little clarity. I'll try to

         20  finish with this line of questioning in a minute or

         21  two.

         22                 The Advisory Committee of what?  The

         23  Advisory Committee of what?

         24                 MR. BASIL: The Advisory Committee is

         25  a group of --

                                                            30

          1  COMMITTEE ON HOUSING AND BUILDINGS

          2                 COUNCIL MEMBER JACKSON: No.  Of what?

          3                 MR. BASIL: It's an Advisory Committee

          4  to the Fire Code Revision Project.

          5                 COUNCIL MEMBER JACKSON: Okay.  And

          6  that's under the FDNY, is that correct?

          7                 MR. BASIL: Yes.

          8                 COUNCIL MEMBER JACKSON: Okay.  Now

          9  you're saying that the unions are going to be

         10  invited.  You mean they're not a part already?

         11                 MR. BASIL: They have been invited and

         12  I believe one or both of the fire unions have agreed

         13  to participate.  And as well as other organizations;

         14  operating engineers, and tank installers, all those

         15  kinds of people.

         16                 COUNCIL MEMBER JACKSON: And who heads

         17  that Advisory Committee in FDNY?

         18                 MR. BASIL: Well, the Fire Code

         19  Revision Project is being handled through the Bureau

         20  of Legal Affairs, of which I am the head.

         21                 COUNCIL MEMBER JACKSON: Okay.  Are

         22  you directly involved in that then?

         23                 MR. BASIL: I'm overseeing it.  We

         24  have a Director of Code Revision and we're working

         25  closely with the Chief of Fire Prevention.
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          2                 COUNCIL MEMBER JACKSON: Okay, because

          3  overall, my general concern would be you should not

          4  come up with a draft, and then share that draft with

          5  the Firefighters.  They should be part of making

          6  that draft, so they're a part of the fabric of it.

          7  As far as accepting it and working on it.

          8                 CHIEF HILL: That's our goal.  We have

          9  Chief Officers in the process ever since it's been

         10  initiated.

         11                 COUNCIL MEMBER JACKSON: Right. But

         12  are those Officers assigned or appointed to the

         13  Advisory Committee by their respective unions, or

         14  FDNY brass and management selects individuals and

         15  say they're assigned, and they're Officers or

         16  Firefighters.

         17                 CHIEF HILL: Well, the Bureau of Fire

         18  Prevention, the Chief of Fire Prevention and myself,

         19  Chief McNally and myself have worked with the people

         20  involved with the process --

         21                 COUNCIL MEMBER JACKSON: But answer my

         22  question.

         23                 CHIEF HILL: We've assigned people to

         24  that --

         25                 COUNCIL MEMBER JACKSON: You decide.
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          2                 CHIEF HILL: Not me individually.

          3  Chief McNally, Chief of Fire Prevention --

          4                 COUNCIL MEMBER JACKSON: Okay.

          5  Because I say to you, from a management/labor

          6  perspective, you should not decide.  Let the

          7  Firefighters Officers union both UFA and UFOA decide

          8  who they want to represent them at the table.  And

          9  you should not decide that.  That's in any

         10  situation.  So that you have true representation as

         11  to that particular organization on the Advisory

         12  Committee.  You would agree with that, right?  Just

         13  like you wouldn't want me to assign someone from the

         14  FDNY to be on an Advisory Committee of the City

         15  Council to advise about the Fire Code. That would be

         16  a little ridicules, wouldn't you agree?

         17                 CHIEF HILL:  Well, as far as --

         18                 COUNCIL MEMBER JACKSON: I said, would

         19  you agree or disagree?

         20                 CHIEF HILL: I'm not sure about

         21  everything that we've got to agree on, but as far as

         22  you're talking about with the unions, who they send

         23  to represent is totally their decision. We're not

         24  going to tell the unions who to send.

         25                 COUNCIL MEMBER JACKSON: Right.  Okay,
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          2  okay, all right. Well, I appreciate that, and this

          3  is to be continued.

          4                 Now, a final question on this.  So

          5  you're saying that the Fire Code would be sent, I

          6  assume through either Building and Housing, or

          7  through the Fire and Safety, which is Yvette Clarke,

          8  in order to adopt any revision or a new Fire Code.

          9  Is that correct?  So I, as a Council Member would

         10  have questions and input into that process?

         11                 CHIEF HILL: Yes.  Yvette Clark has

         12  been invited, and it would be her, or her

         13  representatives will be participating on our

         14  Managing Committee.

         15                 COUNCIL MEMBER JACKSON: Right.  Okay.

         16

         17                 Commissioner, under the

         18  Administration, in your statement, in which you read

         19  on page five.  With respects to, you said a new

         20  provision allows the Department to issue work

         21  permits from the current one- year maximum.  And I

         22  assume that this went through the Committee process,

         23  and everyone agrees with this.

         24                 What if any negative affect that

         25  would have, on having a permit for more than one
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          2  year, for two years, as far as residents and people

          3  that live in the area?  Because, I know, quite

          4  frankly, in my building, there is scaffolding or

          5  whatever, and people are complaining that that is up

          6  too long.  Because it is taking away from the

          7  quality of life in our community.  So what would

          8  this aspect have as far as in the communities that

          9  buildings are going to be built in?  If any at all.

         10                 COMMISSIONER LANCASTER: The Committee

         11  didn't feel like it would have any affect at all.

         12  Because what happens now is that they come and renew

         13  their permit, every 30 days.

         14                 COUNCIL MEMBER JACKSON: Every 30

         15  days.

         16                 COMMISSIONER LANCASTER: Up to a year.

         17                 COUNCIL MEMBER JACKSON: Up to a year

         18  right now?

         19                 COMMISSIONER LANCASTER: Up to a year,

         20  yes.

         21                 COUNCIL MEMBER JACKSON: So now, this

         22  would allow them to do what?  To have a permit just

         23  straight forward to two years?

         24                 COMMISSIONER LANCASTER: Yes.  It

         25  saves the Department paperwork, and it saves them
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          2  coming down to the Department.  But they do it now

          3  anyway.

          4                 COUNCIL MEMBER JACKSON: And to renew

          5  the permit, is there a fee to renew this permit?

          6                 COMMISSIONER LANCASTER: Yes.

          7                 COUNCIL MEMBER JACKSON: And so, is

          8  that renewal fee incorporated into a longevity of a

          9  two- year permit?  Or what's the cost factor?  What

         10  will we gain, and what will we lose as a City as a

         11  result of this process?

         12                 MS. IMUR (phonetic): It's actually

         13  the current- my name is Fas Imur (phonetic).  I'm

         14  the Acting Deputy Commissioner, Building Department.

         15    And I'm the Chair of the Administration Committee.

         16                 The two year, it actually reflects

         17  the reality of how things are being done these days.

         18

         19                 COUNCIL MEMBER JACKSON: Okay.

         20                 MS. IMUR: It means that we're doing

         21  one year, or the expiration of the insurance,

         22  whatever comes first.  And the owner has to keep

         23  hiring an expeditor, you know, to come to the

         24  Building Department, bureaucracy, paperwork, time

         25  consuming for nothing actually accomplished in terms

                                                            36

          1  COMMITTEE ON HOUSING AND BUILDINGS

          2  of safety, workability, or extension of the work.

          3  We felt that the two years, is especially going to

          4  suit large projects.  And it's going to suit the

          5  building owner, who doesn't want to hire,

          6  expensively an expeditor to keep renewing and paying

          7  for this expeditor to keep renewing the permit.

          8                 COUNCIL MEMBER JACKSON: Well, as far

          9  as the renewal, can renewals be done online?  Why do

         10  they have to come down in person?  If in fact, the

         11  environmental aspects of that work project has not

         12  changed, and they're only coming down just to renew

         13  because they have to renew because they only have 30

         14  days, how come they just can't renew online if no

         15  factors have changed?

         16                 COMMISSIONER LANCASTER: You know,

         17  Council Member I'm very happy to be able to answer

         18  that question for you.  You can.

         19                 COUNCIL MEMBER JACKSON: You can.

         20                 COMMISSIONER LANCASTER: Yes.  No

         21  change, we have a pilot project for online renewal,

         22  whereby, you register, you can use your credit card

         23  to pay, and you can print your permit at your desk.

         24                 COUNCIL MEMBER JACKSON: Beautiful.

         25  That makes it easy for everyone.
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          2                 COMMISSIONER LANCASTER: That's the

          3  first.  I'm not saying it's all permits, because

          4  they're --

          5                 COUNCIL MEMBER JACKSON: It's a pilot

          6  project?

          7                 COMMISSIONER LANCASTER: Yes.  There

          8  are 6,000 of them that are affected by that.

          9                 COUNCIL MEMBER JACKSON: Is that

         10  Citywide?

         11                 COMMISSIONER LANCASTER: Yes.

         12                 COUNCIL MEMBER JACKSON: And when does

         13  the pilot project end?

         14                 COMMISSIONER LANCASTER: Well,

         15  actually what will happen is that as time goes on,

         16  there will be more and more that you can do online.

         17  In other words, it won't end necessarily, I mean, it

         18  won't end.  It will expand.

         19                 COUNCIL MEMBER JACKSON: Okay.  But

         20  then, after a certain point in time it shouldn't

         21  become a pilot if it's working well.  You should

         22  incorporate that into the rules.  Do you agree>

         23                 COMMISSIONER LANCASTER: Absolutely.

         24                 COUNCIL MEMBER JACKSON: Okay.  So

         25  that will happen then, I will assume.
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          2                 COMMISSIONER LANCASTER: That's where

          3  we're headed, yes.

          4                 COUNCIL MEMBER JACKSON: Okay. That's

          5  good.

          6                 And so, overall Commissioner, I don't

          7  really have a problem with 478A.  I do have some

          8  concerns about structures that I will be addressing

          9  those with you and your staff, and through the City

         10  Council process.  Because my primary concern is the

         11  safety and security of the people of New York City.

         12  And especially the First Responders that will be the

         13  first ones to respond if there's a fire or an

         14  explosion or an emergency.

         15                 You know, initially, most people get

         16  out of buildings within the first hour, if they're

         17  residential buildings, within the first 15 to 20

         18  minutes.  But those that are left behind are the

         19  Firefighters.  And we know how many perished in the

         20  World Trade Center.  So I just want to make sure

         21  that the residents of New York City, when it comes

         22  to whatever we adopt, are in the best interest of

         23  New York City residents and the people we have to

         24  serve every single day.

         25                 Finally, Madam Chair, I just want to
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          2  say that I disagree with my colleague Tony Avella,

          3  with respects to voting this out today.  I think

          4  that considering that this is the first time that

          5  Into. No 478A, which is this huge document here, is

          6  being discussed in the Committee.  The norm is that

          7  you have a hearing on the particular matter, at

          8  least one hearing, and not vote it out at the same

          9  hearing.  While I may agree with you that everyone,

         10  or almost everyone, is in agreement with this

         11  particular matter, and I know not everyone is in

         12  agreement, but mostly everyone is, I don't think

         13  that from a Committee- process point of view, we

         14  need to rush this.

         15                 So I disagree with my colleague.  I

         16  think that it is clearly appropriate, considering

         17  the fact that with 409, or 413 pages of an Intro,

         18  considering the fact that this Council has just

         19  turned a chapter on the Solid Waste Management Plan,

         20  and considering the fact that this Council is in

         21  budget negotiations, I think we don't need to rush

         22  in order to pass something.  We need to make sure

         23  that it is examined, that it meets the needs, and if

         24  there's any questions or concerns, not only Council

         25  Members have, but the central staff that we work
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          2  with every day, that give us advice on matters.   We

          3  need to deliberate in a manner that is consistent

          4  with the way we do business.

          5                 Thank you very much.

          6                 CHAIRPERSON PROVENZANO: Gee, I think

          7  we're finished with you guys.  My Council asked me

          8  if I had any questions.  I only have one question,

          9  but I want to proceed it by a little story.

         10                 I had a dream. I have a dream past

         11  this code.  But I had a dream last night.  And then

         12  I have a question for you.

         13                 I was standing in a building.  It was

         14  three or four stories, and I'm on the top floor and

         15  I'm looking out the window. And I'm looking at the

         16  building next to me, which is about four stories.

         17  And as I'm looking, I hear all this noise and all of

         18  a sudden, the building starts to collapse.  Boom.

         19  My question for you is, "Do you think I'm too

         20  involved with Housing and Building, or what?".  Do I

         21  need to get a life?

         22                 But I thank all of you.  I don't

         23  think we have any-  Oh, that's what this is.  Okay.

         24  Thank you, Leticia.

         25                 I thank you.  And we'll move on to
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          2  our next testifiers.

          3                 I also want to remind those that want

          4  to speak, that you may think that you're on the

          5  list, and you probably are on the list, but you

          6  still need to fill out one of these little things,

          7  like John Murphy, I know you're here someplace.  But

          8  I don't have a little paper for you.  I know I saw

          9  you.

         10                 George Reilly. Stew O'Brien.  Mike

         11  McGuire.

         12                 I'm going to call you all up

         13  together.  I know Mike is here, I saw him.  It's

         14  hard to miss Mike.  I can say that because I've

         15  known Mike for a long, long time.  And John Murphy,

         16  are you here?  I say you outside.  Oh, Okay.  And

         17  Robert Benazzi, are you here?

         18                 All right, you know what?  Maybe-

         19  yes, we'll call you all up.  Okay, you've voted that

         20  Stew speaks first?  Okay, you're on.

         21                 MR. O'BRIEN: Madam Chairperson and

         22  Members of the Housing and Building Committee, my

         23  name is Stewart O'Brien. For the past eight years, I

         24  have served as Executive Director of the Plumbing

         25  Foundation of the City of New York, which is a
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          2  clearing house and educational forum for all

          3  segments of the industry.

          4                 I am also Executive Vice President of

          5  the Association of Contracting Plumbers of the City

          6  of New York, which represents signatory contractors.

          7                 Also, between 1984 and 1994, I served

          8  on various capacities at the Department of Buildings

          9  as its Inspector General, Deputy Commissioner for

         10  Operations, Executive Deputy Commissioner and as

         11  Acting Commissioner.

         12                 In my capacity as a former official,

         13  I was drafted by Commissioner Lancaster, along with

         14  other former Department of Building officials to

         15  serve on the Administrative Enforcement Committee

         16  revising the New York City Building Code.  Frankly,

         17  at the beginning of the process, I was highly

         18  skeptical that DOB would be able to update the

         19  entire Building Code, particularly, because of the

         20  various and competing interests of the construction,

         21  real estate, architecture, engineering groups among

         22  others.  I was pleasantly surprised, after two years

         23  of hard effort, that DOB made a tremendous effort to

         24  reach out to every segment of the plumbing industry.

         25                 For example, on the Plumbing
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          2  Committee, which was Chaired by Mr. Benazzi to my

          3  right, every plumbing organization that I know

          4  served on that committee.

          5                 Revising the Building Code is a

          6  massive, but necessary undertaking.  With such a

          7  massive effort, there will never be total agreement

          8  on the hundreds of issues being addressed by this

          9  bill.  Indeed, not every concern of ours was

         10  addressed by this bill.

         11                 Nevertheless, given the totality of

         12  Intro. No. 478A, we strongly support this bill as a

         13  major step forward in making the New York City

         14  Building Code more efficient and acceptable.

         15                 And with that, and with a minute and

         16  twenty seconds, I yield the balance of my time to my

         17  colleague, Mr. Reilly.

         18                 CHAIRPERSON PROVENZANO: Thank you.

         19  George.

         20                 MR. REILLY: Thank you Madam

         21  Chairperson, Committee Members, and thank you Mr.

         22  O'Brien for yielding.

         23                 My name is George Reilly.  I am

         24  Business Manager of Plumbers Local One, here in New

         25  York City.
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          2                 As a labor organization, we represent

          3  5,800 men and women, many of whom live and work in

          4  New York City every day.  We are an integral part of

          5  New York's construction industry, and in particular,

          6  play a vital role of protecting the health of its

          7  citizens.

          8                 Careful, well thought- out and safe

          9  codes are the blueprints by which our skilled

         10  craftspeople install and service the intricate

         11  network of water supply, drainage and gas piping

         12  systems in thousands of buildings in New York City.

         13  These systems, often times taken for granted because

         14  they are concealed behind walls, must be designed,

         15  engineered, and installed with the highest

         16  proficiency, and above all, the highest level of

         17  safety in mind.

         18                 When the Department of Buildings

         19  announced a comprehensive plan to modernize or

         20  update the New York City Building Code, I was

         21  somewhat skeptical.  While not disputing the need to

         22  do so, I, and my colleagues, thought that the task

         23  would be overwhelming.

         24                 The job of pouring over volumes of

         25  code provisions, coordinating with hundreds, if not
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          2  thousands, of affected industry people, and then

          3  selecting which code format to use seemed

          4  insurmountable.

          5                 Actually, our feeling was that the

          6  Department should put it's efforts into revising the

          7  current code, thereby keeping a distinct identity to

          8  the code of New York City.

          9                 Later, when the Mayor's Commission

         10  eventually settled on the International Building

         11  Code as the basis for the revision, we were very

         12  concerned and opposed it.  We felt that the Model

         13  Code Program was taking a wrong turn, and that we

         14  would have a very limited voice in the entire

         15  process.  When we raised our objection and concern

         16  to the Building Department, we were pleasantly

         17  surprised by their response.  The Department was

         18  quick to point out that our concerns for a safe,

         19  well- planned, and efficient code was their concern

         20  as well.

         21                 In fact, during the following weeks

         22  and months, I was very impressed at how the

         23  Commissioner and her staff reached out to Local One,

         24  providing us with a meaningful voice in the

         25  development of the new code.
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          2                 Our questions about the future

          3  revision and adoption process were addressed openly

          4  and swiftly as well.  The Building Department put in

          5  place a very transparent and inclusive system as

          6  they proceeded with this tremendous undertaking.

          7                 I have attended numerous meetings

          8  where Building Department officials were present.

          9  They've traveled to places both near and far in

         10  order to clearly explain the entire revision and

         11  adoption process.

         12                 The 13 Technical Committees were

         13  formed to conduct a line- by- line review of every

         14  aspect of both the International Code and the

         15  present New York City Code.  This detailed analysis

         16  was done to make certain that no mistakes were to be

         17  made and to virtually ensure the proper melding of

         18  the two codes.

         19                 As a member of the Plumbing

         20  Committee, I witnessed this process first hand.

         21  Also, a very comprehensive online intranet database

         22  was set up.  It is provided, and continues to

         23  provide access to virtually all documents, Committee

         24  meeting minutes, schedules, notices, and contact

         25  information to each and every participant in the
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          2  process.

          3                 The 400 plus people working almost

          4  two years on these committees come from all walks of

          5  life in New York's building and construction

          6  industry.  Among them are architects, engineers,

          7  government officials, employers, representatives

          8  from labor, community groups, the Building

          9  Department, the real estate industry, trade

         10  associations, and the Fire Department. It is quite

         11  an impressive line up of the best that New York has

         12  to offer.

         13            As one might expect when such a large

         14  number of people work together on a project as this,

         15  total and absolute agreement on every single issue

         16  is certainly a goal, but in reality, almost

         17  impossible.  But from my vantage point, which is

         18  quite close to the process, I can say with absolute

         19  certainty, that the Building Department has taken

         20  ever measure possible to ensure that everyone is

         21  heard, and their input is recognized.

         22                 The Mayor. The Building Commissioner.

         23    Her staff, and all those volunteer professionals

         24  should be commended for their Herculean effort they

         25  have all put into this historic process.
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          2                 In closing, let it be known, that on

          3  behalf of Plumbers Local One, we fully support

          4  Intro. No. 478A and the Model Code Program.

          5                 Furthermore, I urge both this

          6  Committee and the entire Council to pass Intro. No.

          7  478A as soon as possible.  We stand at the brink of

          8  bringing a better New York City Building Code into

          9  the 21st century by adopting this code that will

         10  help create jobs, and continue to ensure a safe New

         11  York for all residents and for all workers.  Thank

         12  you.

         13                 CHAIRPERSON PROVENZANO: Who's next?

         14                 MR. MCGUIRE: Good morning.  I'm Mike

         15  McGuire.  I'm representing the Mason Tenders

         16  District Council, which represents 15,000 member of

         17  the Labors Union, working throughout New York City

         18  and Long Island.

         19                 First thing I would like to point

         20  out, Madam Chair, is that building that collapsed in

         21  your dream, it was built by a non- union contractor.

         22                 CHAIRPERSON PROVENZANO: I'm sure.

         23                 MR. MCGUIRE: I don't have my formal

         24  written testimony with me, I'll be submitting it to

         25  City Council later today.  But I just wanted to sit
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          2  in on this panel and weigh in on this topic.

          3                 We at the Mason Tenders participated

          4  in the program to do the Model Code, as well as the

          5  leadership of Construction General Buildings Labors

          6  Local 79 were also at the table.

          7                 We fully support going with the IBC

          8   -- you know, the difficulty in getting stuff built

          9  in New York City, it's legendary. You have people

         10  who are expediters who, their whole job is just to

         11  kind of work the paperwork through the system.  And

         12  it's slows development which ends of costing jobs.

         13  If you look at a map, every state in the country in

         14  parts, or in whole, are using the IBC or the Model

         15  Code in one way or another.

         16                 It's just a good idea, it's good for

         17  the industry, it's good for the unions, it's good

         18  for the workers, it's good for everybody.  So, on

         19  behalf of the 15,000 members of the Laborer's

         20  International Union and our Locals in New York City

         21  and Long Island, we support the IBC and we urge

         22  passage of this bill.

         23                 CHAIRPERSON PROVENZANO: Thank you

         24  Mike.

         25                 MR. BENAZZI: Good morning Chairman
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          2  Provenzano and Council Members.  My name is Robert

          3  V. Benazzi.  I am a partner and Plumbing Department

          4  head of Jaros Baum and Bolles Consulting Engineers.

          5  JB and B is considered on of the foremost

          6  engineering companies in the world and has provided

          7  the mechanical and electrical system designs for

          8  some of the most prestigious buildings in the world,

          9  including the original World Trade Center, the

         10  Moscow World Trade Center, the Bank of China

         11  buildings in both Hong Kong and Beijing, and the

         12  Sears Tower in Chicago.  We are currently preparing

         13  the designs for the new World Trade Center,

         14  including the soon- to- be complete Seven World

         15  Trade Center.  We also are the engineers for One

         16  Bryant Park, the future headquarters of the Bank of

         17  America, scheduled to be completed in 2008, and

         18  designed to a LEED platinum certification standard.

         19                 I am also one of the representatives

         20  of the American Council of Engineering Companies of

         21  New York, serving on the Model Code Committee, and

         22  I'm proud to say, I serve as the Chairman of the

         23  Plumbing Technical Committee of the Model Code

         24  Program.

         25                 I come before you today to urge you
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          2  to support and pass Intro. No. 478A.  As Chairman of

          3  the Plumbing Committee, I work with approximately 15

          4  committee members, and another 15 subcommittee

          5  members on the new Plumbing Code for the City of New

          6  York.  The members of this committee represent the

          7  broad spectrum of stakeholders within the plumbing

          8  industry, ranging from engineers, contractors, union

          9  members, Building Department and Fire Department

         10  personnel, to representatives of the Real Estate

         11  Board, or REBNY, and the Building Owners and

         12  Managers Association, BOMA. All of them, recognized

         13  leaders in the plumbing and building field.

         14                 This committee, over the past two

         15  years has worked tirelessly, reviewing the

         16  International Plumbing Code, (the IPC), and making

         17  sure that the specific needs of the types of

         18  buildings constructed in New York, and our vast

         19  experience in designing high rise buildings were

         20  incorporated into the proposed new code, using the

         21  IPC as the mode.

         22                 In reviewing the minutes of our

         23  meetings in preparing for this presentation to you,

         24  I've calculated that we have spent in excess of 900

         25  man hours in this effort.  And we are only one of 13
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          2  Technical Committees working on the entire Building

          3  Code.  Why you may ask?  Buildings in New York go

          4  up, work well, why change the code?

          5                 I'm sure you've listened carefully to

          6  the presentations of the Building Commissioner, and

          7  she has probably outlined the whys even better than

          8  I.  But so that you may hear from a practitioner

          9  first hand, indulge me for a few seconds.

         10                 As you know, the current New York

         11  City Building Code was adopted in 1968.  When first

         12  adopted, the code was fair and relatively easy to

         13  use.  However, in the intervening 37 years, the code

         14  has been amended, utilizing various local laws to

         15  try to keep the code up to date with changing

         16  technology and the needs of today's modern

         17  buildings.

         18                 These updates and piece-mealing of

         19  the code have caused the current code to become

         20  dated, unwieldy, difficult to use, and subject to

         21  interpretations and decisions which at times, seem

         22  to be arbitrary, and not necessarily correct.

         23                 It has put the building industry in

         24  the City in a position that we can no longer compete

         25  with the big cities, or even some of our smaller
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          2  neighboring cities that have adopted modern building

          3  codes, which provided architects, engineers, and

          4  builders the opportunity to construct new buildings,

          5  utilizing new technologies, materials and equipment

          6  which allow these buildings to be far more

          7  economical and timely to construct than those that

          8  we can build here in the City.

          9                 One only has to look across the

         10  Hudson to see the new and modern skyline that has

         11  risen, taking workers, industry, and tax payers from

         12  our City.  It is interesting to note that the States

         13  of New Jersey and Connecticut have adopted the

         14  International Building Code.  It is especially

         15  interesting to note that the State of New York also

         16  has adopted the International Building Code and the

         17  various I codes for the State Code.

         18                 It is my belief that the Plumbing

         19  Code that is part of Intro. No. 478A that you will

         20  be voting on, is a giant leap forward for the City.

         21  It will be far easier to use, will bring new

         22  technology to the fore, and most important of all,

         23  provide for scheduled updates on a three- year

         24  cycle.

         25                 Further, it addresses some of the

                                                            54

          1  COMMITTEE ON HOUSING AND BUILDINGS

          2  newer technologies and methods in the area of water

          3  conservation.  We have had the proposed new code

          4  vetted by other practicing engineers, and have asked

          5  them to redesign buildings for which designs have

          6  been completed and priced to see if the new code

          7  mandated changes would put an overly harsh burden on

          8  developers and owners with respect to cost.  We have

          9  found that in the four building types studies, there

         10  is little, if any cost impact.

         11                 As I mentioned, going forward, the

         12  code would be changed on a three- year cycle.  One

         13  year after the International Building Code is

         14  revised.  The purpose of this one- year lag will be

         15  to allow the committee to review and vet the

         16  proposed changes adopted by the International Code

         17  Committee, making sure that the particular needs of

         18  New York City are satisfied.  This will allow the

         19  code to remain current and up to date, without

         20  becoming a voluminous and unwieldy document.

         21                 I believe, and I'm sure I speak for

         22  the other members of the Plumbing Technical

         23  Committee, that passage if Intro. No. 478A and the

         24  future bill adopting the entire International

         25  Building Code will put New York City squarely in the
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          2  forefront of the building industry, and allow us to

          3  remain "The Big Apple".

          4                 Thank you.

          5                 CHAIRPERSON PROVENZANO: Thank you.

          6  John.

          7                 And after your testimony, we have a

          8  vote we have to take.  Not on this, but on something

          9  else.

         10                 John?

         11                 JOHN (?): Madam Chair, as a

         12  representative of the plumbers of New York City, I

         13  share the views of my colleague, George Reilly.  And

         14  to avoid redundancy, and the fact that it's Friday

         15  in the summertime, I would defer my time to any

         16  future panels or speakers.  Thank you.

         17                 CHAIRPERSON PROVENZANO: Thank you

         18  very much.

         19                 If all of you would stay, and we'll

         20  take the vote and we'll then we'll -- what? -- Well

         21  they could only be up by the stairs. It's so nice to

         22  have them all so interested in what's going on.

         23                 Do I still have RJ?  Okay.

         24                 My most faithful Committee person, no

         25  matter which side we're on.
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          2                 We've been joined by Council Member

          3  Joel Rivera, Councilwoman Melinda Katz.  That makes

          4  one, two, three, four, five of us, and if we get one

          5  more Committee Person -- who? What?  Oh, how could

          6  I?  Council Member Leroy Comrie.  I'm just so used

          7  to you that, you know, I thought you were here.

          8  That's a good thing.

          9                 Do we have any questions, as long as

         10  we're waiting for another member or two?  They

         11  decided to leave because they wanted me to interrupt

         12  the speakers to vote.  And I chose not to.

         13                 RJ, do you have a question?

         14                 COUNCIL MEMBER JACKSON:  I heard the

         15  Commissioner state earlier that all of the issues

         16  and concerns, a majority, not all of them, were

         17  considered and addressed.  And it appears as though,

         18  by your statements representing the unions and the

         19  industry that all of you are satisfied as respect to

         20  plumbing, that all of you are dealing with plumbing.

         21    Is that correct?  Except Mason Tendors.

         22                 MR. BENAZZI: I would say that I am

         23  satisfied, but as the previous speaker mentioned,

         24  that when you walk away from a negotiation, usually

         25  a good sign is that when everybody is a little
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          2  happy, and everybody is a little sad, so that there

          3  were items in there that I would have liked to have

          4  seen changed, but quite frankly, I don't want to be

          5  viewed, and my organization doesn't want to be

          6  viewed as an obstructionist to the City of New York.

          7  And these issues that we were talking about are not

          8  insurmountable. So, we did not receive everything

          9  that would be right in the Plumbing Code.

         10                 However, it is certainly sufficiently

         11  enough to wholeheartedly endorse it.  And I

         12  understand that Local One is on, which committee did

         13  you serve on?  Local One representatives on the

         14  Plumbing Committee, the new committee which the

         15  Commissioner formed, which is the Labor and Advisory

         16  Committee, and on the Management Committee.  So you

         17  have full representation throughout the various

         18  committees.  And that was the concern that both the

         19  labor side had and the employer side that we get a

         20  strong voice in that process, both from its

         21  inception to its conclusion.  And the Building

         22  Department has stood up to what they said they would

         23  do.

         24                 COUNCIL MEMBER JACKSON: That's it.

         25  Thank you Madam Chair.  Thank you.
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          2                 CHAIRPERSON PROVENZANO: Thank you.

          3                 And I agree.  In a perfect world,

          4  we'd all get one hundred percent of what we want,

          5  but we all know this is not a perfect world, if it

          6  was, we wouldn't be here.  We'd be in heaven

          7  somewhere, so I think that's what the art of

          8  compromise is.  When we can walk away knowing that

          9  we've got most of what we want, and most of us are

         10  pretty happy.  So, for those that hold out for that

         11  hundred percent, they are probably waiting in vain.

         12                 I thank all of you.

         13                 And our next Committee will be --

         14  let's see -- Lou Colletti, are you out there

         15  somewhere?  I saw you.

         16                 And as soon as we get another person,

         17  we'll vote.

         18                 Jim Conway.  Irwin Cantor.  I'm not

         19  sure all of you signed in, so after you speak, if

         20  you would just sign one of those little slips so

         21  that we have you on the record.

         22                 Whoever wants to start, please do.

         23                 MR. COLLETTI: Good morning Madam

         24  Chairman and Members of the Committee.  Thank you

         25  for the opportunity to discuss this bill.  My name
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          2  is Lou Colletti, and I represent 1,500 contractors.

          3  I am the President of the Building Trades Employers

          4  Association, and I'm also wearing another hat as co-

          5  chairman of the Labor Management Construction

          6  Industry Partnership, and representing Ed Malloy,

          7  who couldn't be here this morning.  He was

          8  unfortunately, stuck in Albany.

          9                 We wholeheartedly endorse this bill.

         10  A lot of work has gone into it.  It's been an

         11  extraordinary opportunity for over 400 professionals

         12  in the real estate, architecture, engineering,

         13  construction, and labor movement to have input into

         14  a document that is absolutely critical to our

         15  survival, and absolutely critical for the ability of

         16  this City to grow.

         17                 We haven't amended this Building Code

         18  in over 60 years.  The members of this Committee

         19  have heard me testify often about safety.  The bill

         20  before you, in particular, begins to consolidate the

         21  enforcement provisions, which was a critical need in

         22  terms of public safety.  It begins to talk about

         23  consistent schedules of civil and criminal

         24  penalties.  It codifies the Department's ability

         25  under common law to act in an emergencies. That's
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          2  absolutely critical to maintain public and worker

          3  safety on our construction sites.

          4                 I have a great deal of respect and

          5  admiration for Councilman Jackson, and I understand

          6  the concerns you talk about voting today, but I want

          7  to urge this Committee, and I want to urge the

          8  entire Council, not to hold this bill hostage to any

          9  inertia.

         10                 I think it was Chuck Schumer that

         11  talked about the environment of inertia.  If you

         12  can't vote on it today, please make it one of your

         13  top priorities at a point that is very quickly will

         14  move this forward.  We need it too bad and too

         15  desperate.

         16                 Let's not let it languish.  It's not

         17  a partisan bill, it's a bill that will, I think,

         18  impact this industry in a positive way and the

         19  residents of this City.

         20                 So I urge you, if you can't find it

         21  within yourself to vote for it today, don't let the

         22  window get too deep.  We need to move this project

         23  ahead, because there's a whole second phase that

         24  will take a great deal of time also.

         25                 I want to also comment just in
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          2  closing -- Councilman Barron asked about safety and

          3  affordable housing -- and I think that's a

          4  particularly important issue.  This code addresses

          5  those issues.  But I just happened to get a copy of

          6  a report a couple days ago that was done by the New

          7  York State Trials Attorneys, ACORN, and several

          8  other community organizations that I would like to

          9  forward to this Committee.  Because it addresses his

         10  concerns about the quality of construction, and

         11  absolutely lambastes those general contractor,

         12  especially in Brooklyn and the Bronx, who have been

         13  building affordable housing.

         14                 And I think this code goes a long way

         15  toward ensuring safety, compliance, and

         16  requirements.  You now need to take a look at making

         17  sure those contractors follow the rules that are in

         18  this code. So, thank you.

         19                 CHAIRPERSON PROVENZANO: Thank you.

         20                 MR. CONWAY: Good morning.  My name is

         21  Jim Conway. I am the Training and Safety Director

         22  for the Operating Engineers, Local 14.  I represent

         23  over 1,000 licensed crane operator, and also about

         24  20 registered New York State apprentices.

         25                 The New York City new Building Code
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          2  has the most compressive crane derrick hoisting and

          3  rigging standards.  The codes call for an

          4  established pre- lift planning which demands that

          5  the owner of the crane, the owner of the building,

          6  the contractor, and the Department of Buildings, go

          7  through a pre- lift planning operation before the

          8  crane enters the construction site.

          9                 It also demands that the operator of

         10  the machine is licensed, qualified, and responsible.

         11    Also, the equipment has to be inspected by the

         12  City of New York and should be in safe working

         13  condition.  The site where the crane has to go to

         14  should be prepared for hoisting and rigging

         15  operation.

         16                 Through the New York City Building

         17  Code, a safety culture has been ingrained on the

         18  crane and rigging projects throughout the five

         19  Boroughs, and has resulted in New Yorkers building

         20  New York productively without sacrificing safety, by

         21  preplanning, preinspection, responsibility,

         22  discipline, lessons learned, new technology, and a

         23  consensus among everybody in the crane and rigging

         24  industry in New York City.

         25                 Finally, the new New York City
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          2  Building Code is also sociably responsible by

          3  providing opportunities to minorities and females to

          4  become licensed and skilled crane operators.

          5  Through the Department of Buildings, they are making

          6  a strong commitment to work with the Apprenticeship

          7  Program to develop minorities and females to become

          8  licensed and skilled New York City crane operators

          9  through training and mentoring.

         10                 Thank you.

         11                 CHAIRPERSON PROVENZANO: Thank you.

         12                 Mr. Cantor.

         13                 MR. CANTOR: Good morning.  My name is

         14  Irwin Cantor. I am a licensed, professional engineer

         15  in New York, specializing in structures.

         16                 During the past 55 years, I have been

         17  the engineer of record for structures such as Trump

         18  Tower, Arthur Ashe Stadium, the Lipstick Building,

         19  and World Trade Center building number Seven.  My

         20  company has engineered tens of millions of square

         21  feet of public and private housing, commercial and

         22  institutional buildings in New York City and

         23  throughout the world.

         24                 I come to you this morning as former

         25  Chair of the Subcommittee on Economic Implications
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          2  for the 1981 code revision, requiring earthquake

          3  protection of buildings for the first time in the

          4  City's history.  I come to you this morning as the

          5  current co Chair with Ed DePaola of the Structural

          6  and Foundations Committee charged by Commissioner

          7  Lancaster with the responsibility of incorporating

          8  with the IBC structural sections into the New York

          9  City Building Code.

         10                 Upon enactment, this will be the most

         11  comprehensive updating and upgrading of the Building

         12  Code in this City's history. It is indeed a

         13  Herculean task which Patricia has approached with

         14  her typical determination and skill, assisted by a

         15  totally dedicated group of people at the Department.

         16                 And I come to you this morning as a

         17  member of the City Planning Commission over the past

         18  11 years  --  although not representing the

         19  Commission today -- who is fully aware of the

         20  logical change to our beloved City, and our needs to

         21  further protect it against another Tuesday in

         22  September.

         23                 Intro. No. 478A takes the

         24  International Building Code as the basis for a

         25  comprehensive and complete updating of the New York
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          2  City Building Code.  Not only to the current IBC

          3  standards, but beyond them in area of life safety

          4  and security. There have literally been thousands of

          5  hours of effort by over 400 dedicated members of the

          6  design, real estate, and construction industry to

          7  dissect and analyze IBC.

          8                 In response to Councilman Jackson's

          9  earlier comments with regard to safety of

         10  structures, I would like to offer the following

         11  comments.

         12                 Our committee first literally

         13  reviewed every single chapter, every single article,

         14  every single paragraph, and every single line of the

         15  current IBC structural code to assure its

         16  applicability to New York City.  We are proposing

         17  new, rational, special requirements to ensure

         18  against progressive collapse.  We will be adding a

         19  completely new modified section to the IBC to

         20  reflect the unique, and very variable foundation

         21  conditions throughout the City of New York.

         22                 We will be extending the requirements

         23  for inspection of buildings.  Buildings under

         24  construction, to assure quality and adherence to the

         25  specs.  We will be recommending the creation of a
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          2  peer- review panel for major structures to further

          3  protect the public as we build our ever more complex

          4  and world- acclaimed architectural masterpieces.

          5                 Indeed, very much of what we are

          6  proposing are discussed in the new document which

          7  just came out from the National Institute of Science

          8  and Technology.

          9                 On a personal note, I have met

         10  several of you when you have appeared before the

         11  City Planning Commission to represent your

         12  constituents.  You know that our process as a

         13  Commission is to review the issues as presented to

         14  us by the Department of City Planning, and raise

         15  questions at review.

         16            Sometimes, based upon what we have heard,

         17  to that point, we form preliminary opinions and

         18  tentative conclusions.  But then we have the public

         19  hearings, such as we are in today.  We get the view

         20  from the other side of the fence.  We listen.  The

         21  results are democracy at work. And you have seen the

         22  great change between November and today.

         23                 The IBC Code is a code whose time has

         24  come.  The first phase, the Administrative Code and

         25  the Plumbing Code, are being today for your
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          2  favorable approval. It's my sincere hope that the

          3  Committee on Housing and Buildings will ask the

          4  questions, and dispassionately review this Intro.

          5  The decisions leading up to its creation, and report

          6  it out favorably to the Council for your prompt

          7  approval.  Thank you very much.

          8                 CHAIRPERSON PROVENZANO: Thank you.

          9  Do we have any questions?

         10                 RJ?  Council Member- yes.

         11                 COUNCIL MEMBER JACKSON: Thank you

         12  Madam Chair, and let me just say to all of you,

         13  thank you, all of you for coming in and giving

         14  testimony.  It seems as though that everyone is in

         15  agreement, but I really haven't heard from the other

         16  side, of those that disagree.  But quite frankly, I

         17  want to make sure that we listen to all parties

         18  concerned.  And I think that you basically said, and

         19  others have said, that the Committee structures that

         20  are in place take into input what everyone has to

         21  say.

         22                 But Mr. Cantor, I understand that you

         23  were formerly Department of Buildings Commissioner.

         24  Is that correct?

         25                 MR. CANTOR: No.  Thank you, but no.
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          2  I'm on the City Planning Commission, sir.

          3                 COUNCIL MEMBER JACKSON: Oh, you're on

          4  the City Planning Commission now.

          5                 MR. CANTOR: I'm currently on the City

          6  Planning Commission, yes.

          7                 COUNCIL MEMBER JACKSON: And you're a

          8  structural engineer?

          9                 MR. CANTOR: Yes sir.

         10                 COUNCIL MEMBER JACKSON: I'm glad that

         11  from what I'm hearing from you that things will be

         12  better as a result of the structural codes which

         13  we're going to be dealing with later.

         14                 But I say to you, I am, even though

         15  things are going to be better, I'm still concerned

         16  about the issues that were raised at the last

         17  hearing, as far as the structural integrity, as far

         18  as hours in the building, and going up and down the

         19  stairwells.  And I hope that those are being

         20  considered.  Because when there's a fire or an

         21  explosion, you're having Firefighters running up the

         22  stairs with their equipment, and you also have

         23  people running down the stairs.  And so I hope that

         24  you realize just how important it is to have

         25  stairwells, whether or not they're in commercial
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          2  buildings or residential high- rise, in order to

          3  take into, really, from a practical point of view,

          4  First Responders running up stairs with equipment,

          5  and people running down the stairs.

          6                 MR. CANTOR:  Well Councilman, if I

          7  may, it's not quite that direct or simple.  With

          8  regard to the issue of stairways, I would defer.

          9  It's not the structural committee.  The protection

         10  of stairways certainly would be the issue for

         11  structural committees, but there are so many

         12  intertwined issues.  And I'm sure in time, this will

         13  all be sorted out.

         14                 When one widens a staircase,

         15  obviously, it's going to help.  It's going to help

         16  the firemen going up, it's going to help the firemen

         17  going down, help the people coming down.

         18                 Secure elevators would also help.

         19  But there are issues that I would say, are cross

         20  pressures. When one widens stairways in a building,

         21  one takes out rental area.

         22                 COUNCIL MEMBER JACKSON: They take out

         23  what?

         24                 MR. CANTOR: Rentable area.

         25                 COUNCIL MEMBER JACKSON: I truly
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          2  understand. I truly understand but the safety and

          3  security should be number one.

          4                 MR. CANTOR: You're absolutely

          5  correct.  There will always be a pushback, and

          6  request for compromise.  And among those issues I'm

          7  sure we'll have to face at one time are how we will

          8  accommodate the loss of area to other stakeholders,

          9  if you will.

         10                 COUNCIL MEMBER JACKSON: Well, I'm

         11  sure there will be considered.

         12                 MR. CANTOR: Speaking for my

         13  structural group, we are trying very, very hard to

         14  upgrade the quality of the structure. But while

         15  doing so, recognizing that there are economic

         16  constraints.

         17                 COUNCIL MEMBER JACKSON: I know about

         18  economic constraints.  We're in a budget process

         19  right now.

         20                 MR. CANTOR: I'd like to, if I may,

         21  tell a story.

         22                 If someone wants to buy a can of

         23  Campbell's soup, that Campbell's soup probably had a

         24  great deal of advertising behind it.  The

         25  advertising was done by a large company, in a large
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          2  office building.  When that company put out its

          3  pricing to Campbells, it included the cost of

          4  operations, which include the cost of rent.  The

          5  cost of rent is directly related to the cost of the

          6  original construction of the building.

          7                 At the end of the day, the price of

          8  that can of soup is determined up the line and down

          9  the line, and it affects the wealthy as well as the

         10  less wealthy.  So, the economic issues are a major

         11  concern as well.

         12                 Safety issues obviously.  Structural

         13  issues, obviously.  Social issues, definitely.

         14                 COUNCIL MEMBER JACKSON: You know, I

         15  was born and raised in New York.  I truly

         16  understand.  I'm not in the real estate industry,

         17  but quire frankly, with respect to this Housing and

         18  Buildings Committee, as a Member of the City

         19  Council, and on the Finance Committee, I truly

         20  understand.

         21                 But I do know that like I say, in my

         22  district. Anyone that knows me -- somebody asks me,

         23   "What is your legacy going to be as a Member of the

         24  City Council?".  It's going to be the CFE lawsuit.

         25  The Campaign for Fiscal Equity lawsuit, which the
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          2  judge has ordered $14.8 billion dollars for our

          3  children.  That's going to be my legacy without a

          4  doubt.

          5                 So, people think that education is my

          6  top priority. But I let them know in a minute, it is

          7  the safety and security of the people that I

          8  represent which is number one.  That's number one.

          9                 So I understand the other interests,

         10  but safety and security of the people represented

         11  should be the prime factor in making a decision.

         12                 MR. CANTOR: Yes sir.

         13                 COUNCIL MEMBER JACKSON: Thank you for

         14  your statement and your analysis, and your opinions.

         15    I appreciate that.

         16                 CHAIRPERSON PROVENZANO: Thank all of

         17  you.

         18                 Right now -- wait, wait.  We have

         19  another question.

         20                 COUNCIL MEMBER JACKSON: Mr. Cantor,

         21  what part of Queens do you live in?

         22                 MR. CANTOR: Bay Side

         23                 COUNCIL MEMBER JACKSON: Thank you.  I

         24  just thought you were from Council Member Katz's

         25  district.
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          2                 MR. CANTOR: No.

          3                 COUNCIL MEMBER JACKSON: Okay.

          4                 MR. CANTOR: I can't say I wish I

          5  were, because there's another Council Member, but --

          6                 COUNCIL MEMBER JACKSON: Okay, I owe

          7  her a nickel.

          8                 I just want to say for the record,

          9  I'm trying not to ask questions today because there

         10  are so many speakers, but I'm just glad to see that

         11  we're almost at consensus here.  And clearly, the

         12  major part of this is through communication and

         13  outreach through all of the hours that all of you

         14  have spent and the Technical Committees, and the

         15  participating structure in trying to put this

         16  together.  You've gotten to a point where almost

         17  everybody is satisfied.

         18                 But clearly, we want to make sure

         19  that -- my main concern is that if there is a

         20  problem, that it can still be resolved by this body

         21  as quickly as possible.  And in a City of this type,

         22  we need to make sure flexibility, speed, and

         23  concern, and keep a high level of communication to

         24  make sure that all of the construction projects that

         25  we do, once we get the Olympics, will be done with
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          2  the highest level of safety and security.  Thank

          3  you.

          4                 MR. CANTOR: I like your positive

          5  thought on the Olympics, Councilman.

          6                 CHAIRPERSON PROVENZANO: Thank you.

          7                 Right now, we're going to interrupt

          8  just a little bit to vote on this piece of

          9  legislation, proposed Intro. No. 607A. The sponsor

         10  of the bill, Council Member Martinez couldn't be

         11  here.

         12                 This is the second hearing on this

         13  Intro.  And the provisions of this legislation are

         14  meant to clarify when the receipt of J51 tax

         15  benefits for the abatement of lead- based paint may

         16  be granted.  We first considered this matter at or

         17  on April 22, 2005.  At that time, the Committee

         18  heard testimony from representatives of the

         19  Department of Housing Preservation and Development,

         20  and from other interested persons, including

         21  representatives of the real estate industry, with

         22  regard to this matter.

         23                 The J51 Real Property Tax Abatement

         24  Program presently allows residential owners to

         25  receive J51 tax benefits for alterations and
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          2  improvements with respect to the remediation of

          3  lead- based paint hazards in dwelling units occupied

          4  by a child under seven years of age.

          5                 In accordance with the legislation,

          6  the Department of Housing Preservation and

          7  Development would establish two schedules of

          8  certified, reasonable costs for items that are

          9  included in abatement of lead- based paint hazards.

         10  One covering such abatement that is performed in an

         11  eligible dwelling unit or common area located in the

         12  targeted area.  And one covering such abatement that

         13  is performed in an eligible dwelling unit or common

         14  area that is not located in the targeted area.

         15                 This bill will apply even if there is

         16  not a child in the particular unit that's being lead

         17  abated.

         18                 We've also been joined by Council

         19  Member Diana Reyna and Councilman Lou Fidler.

         20                 Do you want to call the vote?

         21                 COUNCIL CLERK: Council Member

         22  Provenzano

         23                 COUNCIL MEMBER PROVENZANO: Yes.

         24                 COUNCIL CLERK: Rivera.

         25                 COUNCIL MEMBER RIVERA: I vote aye,
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          2  and I would like to add my name to Intro. No. 607A.

          3  Thank you very much.

          4                 COUNCIL CLERK: Reyna.

          5                 COUNCIL MEMBER REYNA: I vote aye, and

          6  I would also like to make sure my name is on the

          7  sponsor list.  Thank you.

          8                 COUNCIL CLERK: Comrie.

          9                 COUNCIL MEMBER COMRIE: Aye

         10                 COUNCIL CLERK: Fidler.

         11                 COUNCIL MEMBER FIDLER: Aye, and I'd

         12  also like to be added as a co- sponsor.

         13                 COUNCIL CLERK: Jackson.

         14                 COUNCIL MEMBER JACKSON: I vote aye

         15                 COUNCIL CLERK: Katz.

         16                 COUNCIL MEMBER KATZ: I've just been

         17  holding my comments because of the many speakers we

         18  have, but I would like to congratulate everybody who

         19  was involved with this.  This is a long time coming,

         20  and I know there are many folks who got us to where

         21  we are today.  Clearly the Chair of the Committee

         22  has been working very hard and making sure that this

         23  comes to fruition.  But there have been so many

         24  folks that have been involved with the negotiations.

         25    And people that also faced other points of view
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          2  that were important as far as the discussion.

          3                 And  vote aye.  Thank you.

          4                 COUNCIL CLERK: I have votes of seven

          5  in the affirmative, zero in the negative, and no

          6  abstentions.  The item is adopted.  Council Members

          7  please sign the Committal Report.  Thank you.

          8                 CHAIRPERSON PROVENZANO: Thank you

          9  very much.  Are we holding it open?  Okay, we'll

         10  hold the vote open.

         11                 Next we have Sally Regenhart.

         12  Bernard Carr.  Fruma Narov.  Dominick Kass.

         13                 Whoever wishes to speak first.

         14                 MS. REGENHARD: If you don't mind, I

         15  will.

         16                 Good morning, Madam Chairperson and

         17  Members of the Committee.  My name is Sally

         18  Regenhard.  As you know, I've been here quite a

         19  number of times to speak for the need for safe

         20  buildings, reformed building codes, especially in

         21  the aftermath of 9- 11.

         22                 My comments will be brief today. I

         23  want to thank not only you, Madam Chairperson, but

         24  every member of this Committee for their awareness

         25  of public safety and the need for reform in this
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          2  City.  I would like to speak briefly, some of the

          3  former speakers have spoken about the National

          4  Institute of Sanders and Technology, The NIST

          5  Report.  This NIST investigation was a $16 million

          6  dollar, three- year investigation which sought to

          7  find out why the World Trade Center collapsed, and

          8  how it collapsed, and what the ramifications for

          9  building safety there are.

         10                 I'm very proud to say that it was

         11  myself and my organization that went to Congress

         12  shortly after 9- 11 and begged for a Federal

         13  investigation.  We followed it through, I was a

         14  member of that Advisory Committee.  My technical

         15  advisors were, and I was the Families liaison.

         16                 We have 30 recommendations for

         17  improving building safety in this country.  But I'd

         18  like to say that the work that the Coach committees,

         19  and this Committee has done is very, very genuine

         20  and it really has, really rivals the recommendations

         21  here, because they're very, very similar.  So I have

         22  to compliment the City Council and the Department of

         23  Buildings for putting together something that really

         24  is outstanding.

         25                 I'd like to say that I do support
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          2  this Intro. No. 478A.  I do very much value the work

          3  of this Committee, and the comment of Mr. Jackson,

          4  in your discussions about firefighter safety, public

          5  safety, and stairways.

          6                 I'm very happy to say that I work

          7  with both the International Building Code and also

          8  the NFPA.  And I'm happy to say that the NFPA, there

          9  is a preliminary standard that we feel that it will

         10  be passed, that will allow for the widening of

         11  building staircases, 12 inches, in certain buildings

         12  of a certain size that accommodate a certain number

         13  of people.

         14                 I want to say, it's been a long and

         15  hard struggle, but the response of this City, we

         16  have an obligation, the City Council, the City of

         17  New York, to take a leadership role in the response

         18  to things like 9- 11.

         19                 I'm going to finish my comments by

         20  saying, I don't agree with everything in this

         21  preliminary report, and my organization, my

         22  advisors, will be making some critical comments.

         23  However, there is a repeated phrase in here saying

         24  that, you know, the buildings collapsed because two

         25  jets were highjacked, and that the most important
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          2  thing is to keep planes away from tall buildings.

          3                 I will tell you, for the City

          4  Council, and to everyone here today, if we could

          5  count on our government, our Federal Government and

          6  our local government to keep terrorists away from

          7  this City and this country, then we wouldn't need

          8  reform and we wouldn't need strong building codes.

          9  I say, don't rely on that. Have your buildings

         10  strong, have your local government make sure that we

         11  have public safety, strong buildings.

         12                 We have been told that terrorism and

         13  another attack is not a matter of if, it's a matter

         14  of when. Let's not focus on our government being

         15  able to keep terrorists away from us.  Let's do that

         16  also, but let's make sure we have strong, safe

         17  buildings, public safety, a high- standard safety

         18  quality security, and code compliance.  Thank you

         19  very much.

         20                 CHAIRPERSON PROVENZANO:  Thank you

         21  Sally.  As always, it's a pleasure to have you here

         22  and your expertise.

         23                 MR. CARR:  Good morning, Madam Chair,

         24  Members of the Committee.  I'm Bernie Carr,

         25  Executive Director of NYSAFAH, the New York State
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          2  Association for Affordable Housing, the Statewide

          3  organization of developers and others involved in

          4  the financing and building of affordable housing.

          5  The bulk of our 250 members work throughout New York

          6  City's five Boroughs, and are collectively

          7  responsible for most of the housing built with City,

          8  State, or Federal subsidy in the City of New York

          9  City in recent years.

         10                 I'm very happy today to be here today

         11  in support of Intro. No. 478A and also happy to be

         12  in agreement with just about everybody else for a

         13  change.

         14                 For affordable housing developers,

         15  who operate on a very narrow profit margins in order

         16  to meet the rent and income guidelines of government

         17  subsidy programs, nothing is more important than

         18  predictability and efficiency.  The current code has

         19  grown increasingly convoluted and outdated.  In its

         20  current state, its complexity can cause substantial

         21  delays both in the predevelopment period and during

         22  construction, and does not allow builders to fully

         23  utilize modern construction technology.  The result

         24  is higher costs and fewer affordable units since

         25  more subsidy is required for each unit.

                                                            82

          1  COMMITTEE ON HOUSING AND BUILDINGS

          2                 Intro. No. 478A is the result of two

          3  years worth of work by over 400 engineers,

          4  architects, labor and real estate professionals, and

          5  government leaders.  This new code recognizes new

          6  materials and methods that have been developed in

          7  the last 35 years.  It will offer greater clarity in

          8  everyone who uses it.

          9                 Of special note is the fact that this

         10  code is proactive, the committees established by the

         11  Department of Building's Model Code Program as well

         12  as the City Council will be able to update and

         13  review the code as necessary.

         14                 And I just want to add that I am

         15  proud to serve with my friend Bertha Lewis as co-

         16  chair of the Affordable Housing Technical Committee.

         17

         18                 The Council has repeated demonstrated

         19  its commitment to affordable housing, and its

         20  knowledge of the challenges of affordable housing

         21  development.  Most recently, through its support of

         22  its Shared Housing Program developed jointly by

         23  NYSAFAH and ACORN, a program which we hope will be

         24  refunded in next year's budget.

         25                 Resources for affordable housing
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          2  development are scarce and need to be used wisely.

          3  Intro. No. 468A, while ensuring that New York City

          4  will continue to lead the nation, it has concern for

          5  building safety, will allow us to bring construction

          6  techniques into the 21st century.

          7                 It will benefit all New Yorkers by

          8  lowering costs in some of the development process.

          9  It will be a special boon for affordable housing

         10  development.  Thank you.

         11                 MS. NAROV: Thank you.

         12                 Chairwoman Provenzano and Council

         13  Members of the Committee on Housing and Building,

         14  thank you for the opportunity to testify before you

         15  today in strong support for the adoption of the IBC

         16  as the basis for a new Building Code for New York

         17  City, as proposed by Intro. No. 478A.  I urge this

         18  Committee and the entire City Council to pass Intro.

         19  No. 478A without delay.

         20                 My name is Fruma Narov.  I am a

         21  Senior Vice President of Urbtran Associates, Inc.,

         22  an engineering and architectural firm employing

         23  about 200 individuals.  I also have the honor of

         24  chairing the Materials Committee of the Committee to

         25  Adopt the IBC in New York City, and am a member of
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          2  the Managing Committee tasked with the adoption of

          3  the IBC in New York City.  I am a past president of

          4  the New York City Metropolitan chapter of the

          5  American Council of Engineering Companies of New

          6  York, and I am currently serving on the Board of

          7  Directors of the New York Building Congress and

          8  Concrete Industry Board.

          9                 I have been a practicing structural

         10  engineer in New York City since 1970.  When I first

         11  started working in New York City, the Building Code

         12  of the City of New York was a state- of- the art

         13  building code.  It was as relevant as any code that

         14  was in use anywhere in the USA.  Now, more than 30

         15  years later, this is no longer true.  Over the

         16  years, I watched this code's relevance significantly

         17  erode.  It did not have the tools necessary to keep

         18  up with developing technology and changes in theory

         19  and practice.            It is, therefore, that I

         20  was extremely excited when Commissioner Lancaster

         21  announced the creation of the commission to study

         22  the adoption of the national model code in New York

         23  City. The most significant advantage offered by the

         24  adoption of the national model code lies in the

         25  updating process that is built in with such a code.
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          2                 Most national building codes come

          3  with the resources, both professional and

          4  administrative, that are necessary to keep the codes

          5  current.  This is a proactive process that includes

          6  lessons learned from practical experience and the

          7  incorporation of new developments in the practice of

          8  architectural and engineering.

          9                 The majority for the adoption of the

         10  IBC with modification in New York city amongst the

         11  professional community as well as labor, real

         12  estate, and construction groups, is overwhelming.

         13  This support is influenced by the track record of

         14  the IBC, the number of jurisdictions in which the

         15  IBC is used as the local code, and the general

         16  consensus among professionals that the ICC codes

         17  rely less on reference standards than other tools,

         18  contain most of the requirements within the codes

         19  document themselves, and are thus easier to use.

         20  The fact that the IBC code, with modifications, was

         21  recently adopted as the code of the State of New

         22  York, was also a consideration.

         23                 It is widely recognized that New York

         24  City cannot just simply adopt a code without

         25  adopting it to our City's special needs and special
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          2  circumstances.  To that end, as you heard before, a

          3  massive effort was undertaken.  This effort involved

          4  hundreds of individuals representing every aspect of

          5  building construction in New York City.

          6                 It was the charge of these hundreds

          7  of individuals to comb through the IBC and the

          8  Building Code of New York City, recommend the

          9  modifications that will be required to amend the IBC

         10  to meet New York City's special needs, and to ensure

         11  that the national code is not blindly embraced.

         12                 On my committee alone, there were

         13  about 25 individuals representing the professions,

         14  the Real Estate Board of New York City, the

         15  concrete, wood, steel and plastic industries, union

         16  members, testing laboratories, contractors, and

         17  representatives of New York City government.  We

         18  worked very hard, on a voluntary basis, I must add,

         19  to review every aspect of the Materials  section of

         20  the IBC and make the necessary amendments to meet

         21  New York City's special constraints.

         22                 What you have before you today is the

         23  first part of the product put forth by those

         24  hundreds of individuals most of them technical

         25  experts in one area of construction or the other.
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          2                 I hope that you recognize, along with

          3  most of us, that Intro. No. 478A is the first step

          4  in updating the Building code in New York City.  And

          5  I urge you again to pass this bill without delay.

          6                 I just want to add at the end of my

          7  testimony and add a few words related to what was

          8  said here before about safety and security in

          9  building in New York.

         10                 I'd like to point to the City of New

         11  York as an example of safe and secure buildings.

         12  And we've been doing it for many, many years.  It's

         13  not about making buildings safe.  We were making

         14  them safe all along.  It's about adopting to current

         15  practices to take into consideration current events.

         16    At the same time, I do not want to let the Federal

         17  Government off the hook about keeping terrorists

         18  away from our buildings.  Because the only buildings

         19  are terrorists- proof, that I can think of, are

         20  Bankers, and we do not want to live or work in them.

         21     Thank you.

         22                 CHAIRPERSON PROVENZANO: Thank you.

         23  And also, thank you for all the hard work I know

         24  that you've put in.

         25                 MR. KASS: Good morning.  Dominick
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          2  Kass, National Fire Sprinkler Association, Northeast

          3  Regional Manager.

          4                 National Fire Sprinkler Association

          5  whole- heartedly applauds and commends New York City

          6  for moving forward and looking at a Model Building

          7  Code.  Just briefly, attachments to my testimony

          8  which all the members have there.

          9                 The NFSA does not take a stance on

         10  individual fitter licensing, and our Board of

         11  Director's position is included in the testimony.

         12  But most important is I think of the significance to

         13  the many things that have happened in New York City

         14  recently, is a piece of Federal legislation that I

         15  would very happily see this Committee resolve, or

         16  use a copy of the sample resolution I've included to

         17  support HR1131 and Senate bill 512 in DC.  It's

         18  called the Fire Sprinkler Incentive Act.  Presently,

         19  the IRS tax code, depending on what type of

         20  occupancy, a fire sprinkler system depreciates

         21  anywhere from 27 to 39 years approximately.  This

         22  bill, if passed, will address that issue, and fire

         23  sprinkler systems would be depreciated in as little

         24  as five years.  Hence, the name of the act, the Fire

         25  Sprinkler Incentive Act.  Thank you very much.
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          2                 CHAIRPERSON PROVENZANO: Thank all of

          3  you.

          4                   I'm going to excuse myself for a

          5  moment.  There's going to be a press conference

          6  outside.  I'm going to continue the hearing.  My

          7  colleague, Council Member Comrie will continue it.

          8  I don't want to stop it because I don't want to lose

          9  this.

         10                 If you go to the press conference,

         11  we're asking you to please come back.

         12  Unfortunately, the three of us are here.  I would

         13  think that this issue is important enough for 51

         14  Council Members to be here and listen to testimony.

         15  They weren't here the last time, they're not here

         16  today.

         17                 So you all know what your job's are

         18  over the next couple of weeks and months is to get

         19  out there and reach every single one of them and

         20  make this happen.  Now I'm not saying that this is a

         21  final statement.  I'm coming right back.

         22                 COUNCIL MEMBER COMRIE: The next panel

         23  is Mr. Stephen Rosario, Nancy McNabb, Julius Balanco

         24  from JB Engineering, and Richard Flanagan.

         25                 Richard Flanagan.
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          2                 I'll let the group choose who wants

          3  to be first.

          4                 Whenever you're ready sir.  Can you

          5  identify yourself for the record?

          6                 MR. ROSARIO: Mr. Chairman, Members of

          7  the Committee, my name is Steve Rosario.  I am the

          8  Director of the Northeast --

          9                 COUNCIL MEMBER COMRIE: Hold on a

         10  second.  Can you turn his volume up, or you're going

         11  to have to speak up because I can't hardly hear you.

         12  Hold that mike a little closer to you.

         13                 MR. ROSARIO: For the record, my name

         14  is Stephen Rosario.  I am Director of the Northeast

         15  Region for the American Plastics Council.  We are a

         16  national trade association representing the plastics

         17  industry.  And with the Committee's indulgence,

         18  Julius Balanco who is with me, we'd like to do a

         19  little bit of a tag team here.

         20                 I'd like to make a couple of

         21  introductory remarks and then turn it over to Julius

         22  to add some of the technical components, and then

         23  I'd like to make some closing comments.

         24                 I'm here on behalf of not only the

         25  American Plastics Council, but the Vinyl Institute,
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          2  the Plastic Pipe and Fittings Association, and the

          3  New York plastics industry.  We are here to testify

          4  in support of the City's adoption of the

          5  International Building Code.  But we are in strong

          6  opposition of the City's adoption of the Plumbing

          7  Section of the IBC as it is currently written.

          8                 We want to thank the Mayor, along

          9  with the City Council, Buildings Commissioner

         10  Patricia Lancaster, and the hundreds of volunteers

         11  who worked on this issue and they are to be

         12  commended.  We were members of the Materials

         13  Committee, but we were not part of the Plumbing

         14  Committee.

         15                 We have heard a lot about safety.

         16  And for the industry, that is a major issue.  There

         17  are three elements that go into the making of any

         18  products.  And the number one issue- is it safe?

         19  The second is performance- is it going to do what

         20  you want it to do?  And then the third is cost.

         21                 So safety is a huge issue for us,

         22  representing companies that make plastic pipe.  We

         23  also have trial lawyers  who are always looking over

         24  our shoulder because of product liability.

         25                 We also want to make very clear that
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          2  in terms of the adoption of the International

          3  Plumbing Code, which you have heard, we want to

          4  correct the records that the IPC that the City is

          5  adopting is not, I will repeat, is not the code that

          6  New Jersey has adopted, that Connecticut has

          7  adopted, that Vermont has adopted, and that New York

          8  State has adopted.  The current code is the

          9  International Plumbing Code in name only.  It is

         10  basically the City's old code, revised five stories

         11  from three, with some of the enhancements you heard

         12  Commissioner Lancaster speak about.  But it is not

         13  the code that has been adopted by surrounding

         14  states.

         15                 And let me now turn it over to Julius

         16  who's the real expert as it relates to the Plumbing

         17  Code.

         18                 MR. BALANCO: Good morning.  My name

         19  is Julius Balanco.  I am with JB Engineering and

         20  Code Consulting.  And I'm here representing American

         21  Plastics Council.  I am a licensed professional

         22  engineer in the State of New York as well as New

         23  Jersey and four other states.  I'm also a licensed

         24  plumber across the river in New Jersey.

         25                 I've been involved in this profession
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          2  for 30 years, and I am currently on the Board of

          3  Directors of the American Society of Plumbing

          4  Engineers serving as the Vice President, Technical.

          5                 I support the adoption of the

          6  International Plumbing Code, but I support the

          7  adoption without arbitory amendments.  My one

          8  disappointment in seeing the proposal here, is that

          9  there are arbitrary amendments to restrict viable

         10  piping materials in plumbing systems.  That would

         11  include plastic pipe and certain grades of copper

         12  tubing, as well as a few other materials.

         13                 As a professional engineer, the State

         14  of New York grants us the authority to prepare plans

         15  and the specifications. They allow us to spec the

         16  appropriate materials.

         17                 I support an unrestricted use of a

         18  code that doesn't restrict my hand as an engineer to

         19  specify a viable material.

         20                 There's been a lot of questions about

         21  the safety of plastic pipe, and using the old New

         22  York City Building Code, I would whole- heartedly

         23  agree.  It does not have the safety provisions that

         24  the International Building Code has for piping

         25  materials.  I've worked over the last 25 years to
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          2  upgrade the building codes to make sure that all the

          3  penetration protection, protection of pipe in the

          4  wall are proper and safe.  This code addresses all

          5  of that, and there should not be an arbitrary

          6  restriction.

          7                 The Plumbing Codes address the

          8  performance of the materials.  That's what the

          9  Plumbing Code is about.  Plastic pipe performs

         10  exactly as it should for plumbing systems.  So do

         11  all the grades of copper tubing as well- they

         12  perform as required.  This has been proven time and

         13  time across this country.

         14                 Some say it's a labor issue.  I

         15  brought with me the National Labor Estimator that

         16  the Plumbing, Heating, Cooling contractors national

         17  association puts out.  And it provides us in the

         18  plumbing community an opportunity to determine the

         19  hourly time required to do certain performance.  I

         20  compared the cast iron to PVC.  What some might be

         21  surprised to find, is that for four- inch and larger

         22  pipe, four, six, eight- inch pipe, the installation

         23  time for PVC is slightly more labor than cast iron.

         24  Now for two inch or less, the same table lists that

         25  PVC is slightly less labor than cast iron.
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          2                 However, plastic is easier on the

          3  back, and the plumbers don't have to strain their

          4  muscles as much.  It's all much lighter material.

          5                 I think the real issue is the cost of

          6  the material. I looked last night, both online and

          7  at the typical material tables that we use in the

          8  plumbing industry, I used the Brandford Table. Cast

          9  iron pipe costs on average, five times more than PVC

         10  to purchase the pipe and sell it to the building

         11  owner.  Cast iron fittings are 70 percent higher.

         12  If you look across the river to New Jersey, the

         13  difference between the high- rises built there and

         14  the high- rises build in lower Manhattan, is that

         15  the piping material costs are five times higher.

         16                 Code amendment is like saying, "Let's

         17  spend money"- and I use a car as an example -- I

         18  think a Cadillac is great so everybody should buy a

         19  Cadillac.  You can't buy a Suzuki Aereo. And I don't

         20  think that's right.  I think the code should allow

         21  every viable material and let the engineer choose

         22  which is the viable material.

         23                 I've been very involved in affordable

         24  housing.  I've been involved in a pilot project that

         25  was a public/private initiative in the Vail Valley
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          2  in Colorado.  I currently have a project under

          3  construction in Chicago that is 200 new affordable

          4  housing.  In all of these projects we have used the

          5  International Plumbing Code unrestricted.  We put in

          6  plastic pipe, air- admittance valve and similar

          7  things.

          8                 I was just in Fort Meyer, Florida,

          9  inspecting a new project down there, a 21- story

         10  high- rise building.  The entire water riser is CPVC

         11  plastic pipe.  All the units are piped in CPVC

         12  plastic pipe.

         13                 New Jersey and Connecticut do not

         14  restrict plastic pipe to only residential five-

         15  story or less buildings.  You can do it in any

         16  commercial building.  You can do it in any high-

         17  rise building.

         18                 Don't amend the code to restrict the

         19  material restrictions.  I would encourage you to

         20  leave the Material Tables as in the International

         21  Plumbing Code.  Do not delete Section 917 of the

         22  IPC, and allow us plumbing engineers to specify the

         23  appropriate water, drainage piping material.  We

         24  look at each individual product and determine for

         25  project and determine which is the appropriate
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          2  material to use based on our knowledge and

          3  expertise.

          4                 So I'd encourage you to adopt a code,

          5  again, without those restrictions.  Thank you.

          6                 MR. ROSARIO: If I can make one more

          7  point in closing.

          8                 COUNCIL MEMBER COMRIE: Actually,

          9  before you even make your point, I wanted to ask Mr.

         10  Balanco a question.

         11                 On this Section 917, do you have a

         12  copy of that with you so we could look at it right

         13  now?

         14                 MR. BALANCO: I have it on the

         15  computer.  That's the allowance of air- admittance

         16  valve in venting systems. It's a low cost system

         17  alternative

         18                 COUNCIL MEMBER COMRIE: Okay.  And

         19  you're talking about flexibility.  But isn't this in

         20  fact a baseline that would be established as far as

         21  materials are concerned?  And you could go above the

         22  baseline standards?  It's like a minimum acceptable

         23  standard.

         24                 MR. BALANCO: Right. The minimum

         25  acceptable standard --
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          2                 COUNCIL MEMBER COMRIE: You could use

          3  higher- quality materials if you so choose.

          4                 MR. BALANCO: Exactly.  That's what I

          5  want.  To allow the engineer of building under that

          6  option.  If they want to use the plastic --

          7                 COUNCIL MEMBER COMRIE: But wouldn't

          8  that be adopted in any code anyway?  I mean,

          9  wouldn't this code allow -- this code is to

         10  establish baseline.  Correct?

         11                 MR. BALANCO: Correct.

         12                 COUNCIL MEMBER COMRIE: But if a

         13  person wanted to go above the baseline, it would be

         14   -- or use in their estimation, a higher- quality

         15  material, that already met national standards, it

         16  wouldn't be prohibited.

         17                 MR. BALANCO: Well, yes.  It is

         18  prohibited.  That's my concern is that it's

         19  prohibited right now.  If I wanted to use a plastic

         20  material in a high- rise building, I'm prohibited

         21  from doing that.

         22                 COUNCIL MEMBER COMRIE: But for safety

         23  reasons, it's not for structural reasons.

         24                 MR. BALANCO: Right.  And I'm saying

         25  there are no safety reasons for that.  That was my
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          2  concern.  There are no safety reasons.  They have

          3  been addressed in the building code.  And they've

          4  been addressed in the Plumbing Code.

          5                 COUNCIL MEMBER COMRIE: In the

          6  previous building code?

          7                 MR. BALANCO: In the International

          8  Building Code, they've been addressed.

          9                 COUNCIL MEMBER COMRIE: In the

         10  proposed code.

         11                 MR. BALANCO: That's correct.

         12                 MR. ROSARIO: No, let me correct that.

         13                 COUNCIL MEMBER JACKSON: I'm sorry,

         14  Leroy, Mr. Chair.  Is it possible that we can follow

         15  a normal situation?  I have not heard from all the

         16  speakers and we are already entertaining questions.

         17                 COUNCIL MEMBER COMRIE: Okay, he was

         18  jumping in --

         19                 MR. ROSARIO:  I had asked the

         20  Council, because the two of us are together.  We're

         21  not with the other --

         22                 COUNCIL MEMBER JACKSON: It doesn't

         23  really matter. I want to hear from the other

         24  speakers at the table.  That's important for us.  I

         25  don't want to get into a dialogue of questions.  If
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          2  that's the situation, you should have come up

          3  separately.

          4                 MR. ROSARIO: Well, I had asked to

          5  come --

          6                 COUNCIL MEMBER JACKSON: It doesn't

          7  matter.  Quite frankly,

          8                 MR. ROSARIO: May I make at least one

          9  last point?

         10                 COUNCIL MEMBER JACKSON: No, you

         11  cannot. As far as I'm concerned, I'd like to hear

         12  from the other people.

         13                 COUNCIL MEMBER COMRIE: Is there

         14  another speaker on the panel?

         15                 MS. MCNABB: Thank you Council Members

         16  for allowing me before you today.

         17                 COUNCIL MEMBER COMRIE: I'm sorry, I

         18  didn't know that Council Member Oddo is here.  He

         19  needs to vote on the record.  The time schedule is

         20  quite compressed.

         21                 Minority Leader Oddo.

         22                 COUNCIL MEMBER ODDO: Thank you, Mr.

         23  Chairman

         24                 I vote aye.

         25                 COUNCIL MEMBER COMRIE: Thank you.
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          2  Aye on 607, correct?

          3                 I'm sorry, continue.

          4                 MS. MCNABB: Thank you Council Member

          5  Comrie for allowing you to speak before you today.

          6  My name is Nancy McNabb, and I'm a Regional Manager

          7  for the National Fire Protection Association (NFPA).

          8    I'm also an architect registered in the great

          9  State of New York.

         10                 I am here in opposition to Intro. No.

         11  478A.  It is a last- minute attempt to try to

         12  undermine the authority of City Council in a way

         13  that would result in a lower level of safety for the

         14  people of New York.

         15                 As I mentioned, the time I spoke to

         16  you in November of last year, before coming to NFPA

         17  I served as Assistant Director for Codevelopemnt and

         18  Interpretation for the State of New York.  So I am

         19  familiar with both sides of the counter here.

         20                 As an architect, I was sometimes

         21  frustrated with lengthy delays associated with

         22  pulling permits for my projects. But as a Code

         23  Official, I came to understand the need for

         24  transparency and easy access to the requirements for

         25  safe building construction.  I learned that
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          2  stakeholders in the construction community are best

          3  served when safety regulations are open and clear to

          4  all.

          5                 At NFPA we believe that safety is

          6  everyone's business.  And let me first say that we

          7  are very proud of NFPA 5000, the model building code

          8  that we have developed.  As you know, NFPA 5000

          9  would be adopted as the basis for the City's code

         10  through a competing bill, Intro. No. 368.

         11                 For more than 100 years, our

         12  organization has been an important contributor to

         13  building safety.  With many of the most critical

         14  safety provisions in our code, addressing needs

         15  right here in New York City.  NFPA's life safety

         16  code was a direct result of our investigation into

         17  the Triangle Shirtwaist fire in 1911.  NFPA was also

         18  on the ground to review and investigate the tragedy

         19  of September 11th.

         20                 The results of such investigations

         21  have led to important safety provisions here, and

         22  around the world. And I don't know if you read the

         23  Times today, but we did the 1993 investigation of

         24  the bombing of the World Trade Center, which

         25  resulted in many of the improvements to the means of
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          2  egress that were credited with saving the lives of

          3  many of the 9- 11 victims.  We recommended to the

          4  Port Authority back in 1993- 1994, photo-

          5  luminescent paint in the means of egress.

          6  Commissioner Lancaster is quoted as saying that it

          7  took two years to make changes to the City code to

          8  make that requirement in all high- rise

          9  construction.

         10                 You do the math.  The recommendation

         11  was made in 1993, and after 9- 11, it was taken

         12  seriously.

         13                 Just yesterday, I participated in an

         14  important session held by the National Institute of

         15  Skyscrapers Standards and Technology, on ways to

         16  improve the safety of skyscrapers.  Many of the

         17  recommendations made for tall buildings are already

         18  in the NFPA 5000, and I think Sally mentioned to you

         19  some of the proposed regulations for the new

         20  addition of the 5000.  They are already

         21  incorporated.

         22                 We are already at the forefront for

         23  safety for tall buildings.  All of us at NFPA know

         24  full well how important safety codes are to

         25  protecting people and property, especially in the
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          2  configurations that you have in New York City.  Our

          3  commitment to New York City continues through NFPA

          4  5000.

          5                 If you vote against Intro. No. 478,

          6  you will actually be helping to move New York City

          7  ahead in terms of public safety.  You will be

          8  supporting the NFPA building code that provides

          9  greater protection for high- rise structures.

         10  Clearly, a major concern in this City.

         11                 And I'll give you some examples.  For

         12  example, the NFPA building code requires that

         13  columns and beams be protected against fire for four

         14  hours, a stricter requirement of two to three hours

         15  of fire protection contained in the IBC.

         16                 NFPA 5000 requires a greater distance

         17  floor to ceiling in the means of egress, providing

         18  space and room to breathe in the event of a fire,

         19  helping make it easier to evacuate occupants.  This

         20  is a major issue to protect the safety of

         21  firefighters and the public.

         22                 Our code also addresses another

         23  important need for New York City.  We require a

         24  life- safety analysis for places of public assembly

         25  that hold more than 6,000 people, such as theaters.
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          2  The IBC does not require that analysis.

          3                 There are many other technical

          4  examples I can give you of how or building code

          5  provides the basis for building regulations that

          6  insure a better quality of life.

          7                 In addition, we are committed to

          8  making available to code enforcers, free training in

          9  code books for NFPA 5000.  We'll also provide all of

         10  the assistance the City needs to prepare New York

         11  City amendments to any model building code that you

         12  would require.

         13                 Plain and simple, our code is all

         14  about safety.  All of our codes are developed with

         15  safety of the public in mind.  We believe the best

         16  way to develop the most comprehensive, up- to- date

         17  safety codes is to make sure that each affected

         18  group has an equal seat at the table when codes are

         19  being developed.  We get the right people together

         20  at the beginning of the process to create  the best

         21  possible safety code.

         22                 Now, I want to state that we believe

         23  that the bill being discussed today is alarming to

         24  say the least.  Intro. No. 478A allows for the

         25  adoption of the IBC, the code that would mandate on
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          2  New York City, all of the shortcomings I just

          3  mentioned as well as many more.  Even if the IBC

          4  were amended to compensate for those holes, the

          5  point remains that these are things that should have

          6  been addressed in their development process.

          7                 We believe this City deserves better.

          8    And the real question for you is- do you want a

          9  code that favors cheap buildings that are less safe

         10  at the outset or whether you want a code that favors

         11  safety and not cheap, but less expensive buildings

         12  in the long run.

         13                 Unfortunately, Intro. No 478 does not

         14  provide what the City needs.  Intro. 478 also calls

         15  for the adoption of the International Plumbing Code,

         16  another code that misses the mark for safety.  First

         17  of all, like all ICC codes, the IPC is not developed

         18  using an open consensus based process.  At the first

         19  cut, this effectively excludes input from the

         20  national plumbing community. Also, the IPC does not

         21  include important provisions such as plumbing

         22  systems in food handling areas, and the safety of

         23  gas piping.  In addition, the IPC has very low

         24  requirements for the minimum number of plumbing

         25  facilities for women.
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          2                 These are only a few of the

          3  deficiencies contained in the codes that would be

          4  adopted as a base through 478A.

          5                 And at this point, I'd like to clear

          6  up a few things that have been surfaced in recent

          7  weeks.  I know it has been written that the

          8  Administration has floated an offer to potentially

          9  look at requiring the retro- fitting of automatic

         10  sprinklers in residential occupancies over four

         11  stories high.  However, the Department of Buildings

         12  has denied any agreement to do this.  And real

         13  estate interests have already said that they would

         14  oppose such a requirement.  While, we certainly

         15  support the use of sprinklers, we doubt that this

         16  proposed requirement would actually be made by the

         17  Administration.

         18                 And in closing, I know that you are

         19  carefully considering all of the information as you

         20  make decisions which code will be best for New York.

         21    Does New York want to trade a home grown code and

         22  pay for a store- bought one that is not at the

         23  forefront of tall building safety?  Does the great

         24  City of New York want to be on the cutting edge of

         25  safety construction, or second rate?
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          2                 Given the importance of this issue,

          3  we hope you will agree with NIST, as a matter of

          4  fact, because NFPA is mentioned about ten times as

          5  many times as the ICC in this document.  We will

          6  provide the highest level of safety for the people

          7  of New York.

          8                 Again, I ask you to oppose 478A and

          9  support Intro. No. 358.  Thank you for your time.

         10                 COUNCIL MEMBER COMRIE: I just wanted

         11  the audience to be aware that I gave Ms. McNabb more

         12  time only because I know that she represents the

         13  opposition and the NFPA.  Not that ever other

         14  speaker will have more than three minutes.

         15                 I appreciate your passion on the

         16  issue, and we'll -- due to the amount of speakers

         17  and the fact that I'm losing my voice from going to

         18  five graduations before I got here this morning,

         19  we'll debate this at another time.

         20                 Next speaker please.

         21                 MR. FLANAGAN: Thank you.  I am

         22  Richard Flanagan.  I am counsel to the Master

         23  Plumber's Council for the City of New York.  The

         24  MPC.

         25                 The MPC is by far, the largest
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          2  plumbing industry trade association, comprised of

          3  licensed master plumbers in the City of New York.

          4  Most of our members are engaged in the service,

          5  alteration, and repair aspect of plumbing.  And just

          6  to make it clear, we distinguish that from new

          7  construction.  Most of our members are involved in

          8  the repair aspect of plumbing.

          9                 The MPC had been permitted to be

         10  actively involved in the committee process

         11  respecting technical issues.  One of our members,

         12  Lennie Williams was very active in the Plumbing

         13  Technical Committee, and we share a belief that most

         14  of the plumbing technical issues are behind us, no

         15  matter what code name we give them.

         16                 Our concern is that the collaborative

         17  process that was supposed to apply to all issues got

         18  off track.  And it got off track in our minds with

         19  respect to administrative aspects of the code.

         20                 There are rumors, and I think we've

         21  heard even statements today, that the plumbing

         22  industry, plumbing companies, master plumbers are

         23  pretty much in agreement with respect to Intro. No.

         24  478A.  That is not true.  My group strongly opposes

         25  portions of the prospective legislation.  And I
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          2  don't think it's appropriate to get into too much

          3  minutia with the Committee today, but I believe that

          4  the minutia that I must touch upon is simply a

          5  matter of the process having gone awry.

          6                 These issues should have been fairly,

          7  and fully discussed prior to this time, but must be

          8  raised at this time to preserve them.  The original

          9  process as set up by the Department of Buildings is

         10  one that intended to not only involve all interested

         11  parties, but also to provide provisions for

         12  resolution of disputes, mediation, arbitration, et

         13  cetera.  That has happened on the technical side, it

         14  has not happened on the administrative side.

         15                 That leaves us to a feeling, and I

         16  think it can be substantiated, that with respect to

         17  questions such as the composition of the Licensing

         18  Board going forward.  And issues such as the

         19  introduction of a new journeyman registration

         20  procedure, we've been shut out.  That's why we must

         21  speak to those issues today briefly, and hope that

         22  those issues will be fully addressed with our

         23  participation as the process goes forward to what we

         24  hope will be a prompt conclusion.

         25                 It cannot be fairly argued that the
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          2  changes that are being made in the composition of

          3  the Licensing Board will fairly represent all

          4  members of the industry.  We believe that, without

          5  being too specific, that special interests have

          6  attempted to shift the balance in the Licensing

          7  Board in one direction.  It must remain where it is.

          8    And, therefore, at the aspect of the proposed

          9  legislation relating to the composition board, must

         10  be fine tuned going forward.  We cannot agree to it

         11  as currently written.

         12                 With respect to journeyman

         13  registration, we believe it's a salutary goal to try

         14  to improve the level of plumbing in the City, as

         15  well as all other trades.  The language as currently

         16  written really does nothing.  It simply requires, in

         17  very brief form, that those who are journeyman, that

         18  is those who are not master plumbers, but work in

         19  the plumbing industry, be registered. There is no

         20  provision for training, testing, or anything else

         21  which would normally apply to any kind of licensing

         22  or prelicensing.

         23                 On the engineering side, before you

         24  can become an engineer in this State, you have to be

         25  an engineer in training. That is not what the
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          2  journeyman registration as currently, does.

          3                 We would be speculating to ask why

          4  anybody wants to introduce legislation where all

          5  journeymen plumbers have to be listed somewhere with

          6  their names and addresses and social security

          7  numbers, or some variation on that.  I have my own

          8  theories. Everybody can have their own theories.

          9                 Unless this type of provision

         10  addresses safety, training, improves the level of

         11  our plumbing trade, it's pointless. It should not be

         12  there.

         13                 We hope to continue to --

         14                 COUNCIL MEMBER COMRIE: You're way

         15  overtime. At this time I'd like to hear your

         16  specific issues on journeyman procedures and the

         17  composition of the Licensing Board, and I think you

         18  made those two points.

         19                 MR. FLANAGAN: Thank you.

         20                 COUNCIL MEMBER COMRIE: Thank you.

         21                 That's the entire panel.  Correct?

         22  Okay.

         23                 Just to be clear, you said that you

         24  believe that the composition at the Licensing Board

         25  was going to shift the balance in one direction.
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          2  What is the present composition of the Licensing

          3  Board?

          4                 MR. FLANAGAN: There are, I believe,

          5  three representatives who are on the -- I don't want

          6  to say on the union side, but maybe that's the

          7  easiest way to identify it.  There is an "at large"

          8  member.  There are a couple of governmental members.

          9    I don't recall specifically how is presently set

         10  up.  I can tell you how we perceive at least, the

         11  shift will take place, given the way the new

         12  administrative provisions of the code read.

         13                 Is that what you're looking for?

         14                 COUNCIL MEMBER COMRIE: Right.

         15                 MR. FLANAGAN: What we see happening

         16  is that we will continue to have three members from

         17  the group that has the largest percentage of

         18  plumbing work in the City.  I don't think you need

         19  to do a study to conclude that probably the largest

         20  percentage in dollar value is done through union

         21  companies.  Not in companies, in number of

         22  companies, but in dollar value.

         23                 I think that's going to be fairly

         24  well agreed to by both sides of this.  There's

         25  currently an "at large" member who is going to be
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          2  done away with.  There will be a new member, who we

          3  perceive, to be basically aligned with the three let

          4  me call them "union" members.  It's not written that

          5  way, but we perceive that is the intent, and that

          6  will be the result.

          7                 COUNCIL MEMBER COMRIE: So you're the

          8  non- union plumber, is that clear, or am I --

          9                 MR. FLANAGAN: Most of our members are

         10  not affiliated with any union.  They are not

         11  signatories to any collective bargaining agreement.

         12  A lot of them are smaller plumbers out in the outer

         13  Boroughs, and they are doing a majority of the

         14  repair and alteration work.  As opposed to a new

         15  building.

         16                 COUNCIL MEMBER COMRIE: Okay.

         17                 MR. FLANAGAN: We want to make sure

         18  that the playing field is level, and all decisions

         19  take into account all who are interested in the

         20  process.

         21                 COUNCIL MEMBER COMRIE: So you're

         22  saying that, but on the other hand, you're saying

         23  you want a stricter registration for journeymen.  So

         24  they would have to be licensed professionally?

         25                 MR. FLANAGAN: No.  We are not
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          2  necessarily in favor or not in favor of journeymen

          3  registration.  We are in favor, however, of

          4  continually increasing the level --

          5                 COUNCIL MEMBER COMRIE: You just added

          6  that architects and other professionals have to be

          7  registered, so I'm just trying to be clear on what

          8  your direction --

          9                 MR. FLANAGAN: Well, we have licensed

         10  plumbers.  We have licensed plumbers in the City.

         11  We have over a thousand licensed master plumbers in

         12  the City.  Now any plumbing, the majority of

         13  plumbing, must be done through an entity that at its

         14  top, has a master plumber.  It must be done under a

         15  master plumber's license.

         16                 What has been proposed is, could be

         17  considered, a second- level licensing.  Or maybe a

         18  pre- level pre- licensing.  That is beginning to

         19  take some of our tradesmen who don't own their own

         20  businesses, and don't have master plumber's

         21  licenses.  But begin to put them into a process

         22  where we can establish what their skill is, and

         23  whether they are appropriate for certain types of

         24  work.

         25                 The language right now is really,
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          2  does not contain anything that would convince one

          3  that this language is going to accomplish that goal.

          4    And many of my members say we have enough

          5  difficulty in this City enforcing the requirements

          6  that we have in place.  We have enough unlicensed

          7  work going on, that is, work not being done under

          8  any master plumber, to put in new provisions that

          9  don't seem to accomplish anything when we don't even

         10  have the funds to have enough inspectors to enforce

         11  what we have.  We may be putting the cart in front

         12  of the horse.  And it's not essential to the

         13  building code.

         14                 COUNCIL MEMBER COMRIE: I got you.

         15  Thank you for your time.  Thank you panel.

         16                 CHAIRPERSON PROVENZANO: Thank you

         17  Council Member Comrie.  I know you did a good job, I

         18  already got a report.

         19                 We've been joined by Council Member

         20  Gail Brewer. Gail, we voted on that -- Okay.

         21                 Next we have Fred Lindquist, Mark

         22  Ginsberg, Carl Galioto, Chester Vogel.

         23                 MR. LINDQUIST:  Good morning, Chair

         24  Provenzano.  My name is Fred Lindquist.  I am the

         25  Vice President of the American Council of
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          2  Engineering Companies of New York, the New York

          3  Metro region, known as ACEC.  We're the oldest

          4  continuing organizations of professional consulting

          5  engineers in the United States.  The Council

          6  represents over 230 firms throughout New York State,

          7  with the largest concentrations of firms located in

          8  the five Boroughs of New York City.

          9                 ACEC's New York objectives are to

         10  initiate and promote specific legislation that

         11  addresses issue of concern to the business of

         12  engineering, to educate members to be more

         13  politically aware and active, to promote cooperative

         14  relationships, to maintain ongoing dialogue with

         15  government agencies, and to work with related

         16  professional and construction organizations to

         17  promote common agendas and key issues.

         18                 ACEC New York also encourages public

         19  agencies to use consulting engineers for their

         20  specialized knowledge and ability to complete

         21  projects on time and within budget.  We also promote

         22  public sector investment and infrastructure

         23  necessary for public safety and economic

         24  development.

         25                 In other words, we are the voice of
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          2  the engineers responsible for the integrity of the

          3  roofs over your head, the heating, the ventilation,

          4  the lighting of the offices where you work, the

          5  efficiencies of the subways you ride, the quality of

          6  the water that you drink.

          7                 I, myself, a licensed professional

          8  engineer and a partner Executive Vice President of

          9  the 103- year old New York City based mechanical

         10  engineering firm of Meyer, Strong, and Jones

         11  Engineers PC.  As Vice President of the American

         12  Council of Engineering Companies of New York Metro

         13  region, I represent ACEC as a member of the

         14  Executive Committee to the adoption to the new code.

         15    And, I am a member of the New York City Department

         16  of Building's Building Advisory Committee, Reference

         17  Standard Committee, and a member of the

         18  Commissioners Forum.

         19                 ACEC strongly urges you to support

         20  the amended Intro. No. 478 and to approve this very

         21  important proposed legislation as soon as possible.

         22                 There are three reasons why ACEC

         23  supports the new Building Code.  It's the right

         24  solution for New York.  It's comprehensive, and it's

         25  cost effective.
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          2                 The New York City Building Code is

          3  widely recognized as one of the most stringent codes

          4  in the country.  Despite this, the Building Code is

          5  convoluted, lacks clarity, and is technically

          6  outdated, resulting in the need for various types of

          7  costly reviews and expensive delays.

          8                 As a result of broad industry outcry

          9  to update the City's Building Code, and following

         10  the success of the recent Electrical Code adoption

         11  effort, the Mayor established a Code Commission for

         12  the purpose of determining the feasibility of

         13  adopting a model code for New York City.

         14                 In the Spring of 2003, the Mayor

         15  accepted the Commission's recommendation calling for

         16  a consensus- based Building Code developing process

         17  that emulated the successful Electric Code

         18  development process.  ACEC embraced that process.

         19  Several dozen of our members, including myself, have

         20  devoted countless hours of discussing and debating,

         21  as professionals, what is best for New York.  And as

         22  a result, rewrote the Building Code.

         23                 We believe that now the legislation

         24  should move forward.  Intro. No. 478A establishes an

         25  administrative framework, adopts a modern Plumbing

                                                            120

          1  COMMITTEE ON HOUSING AND BUILDINGS

          2  Code, appropriately reflects New York's unique

          3  experience and needs, particularly involving

          4  structural integrity and life safety.  Adaption

          5  (sic) will send a message to the real estate

          6  community, as did the adaption (sic) of the new

          7  Electrical Code, that New York is serious about

          8  streamlining the building of badly needed commercial

          9  and residential buildings, not to mention public

         10  works.

         11                 On behalf of our 30,000 consulting

         12  engineers, ACEC urges you to approve Code Intro. No.

         13  478A.  It is the right code for New York.  And thank

         14  you.

         15                 CHAIRPERSON PROVENZANO: Thank you,

         16  and also thank you for your work on this Committee.

         17                 MR. GINSBERG: Good afternoon.  I am

         18  Mark Ginsberg, 2004 President of AIA New York

         19  Chapter, the founding chapter of the American

         20  Institute of Architects, representing 4,000

         21  architects, professional affiliates, and public

         22  members.

         23                 We support the bill before you,

         24  Intro. No. 478A for the initial adoption of the IBC,

         25  specifically, the Administrative and Plumbing Code.
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          2  I would like to talk about how we've gotten to this

          3  point, the process the Department of Buildings has

          4  undertaken, and why we strongly support the adoption

          5  of the modified IBC for New York City.

          6                 After the horror of September 11th,

          7  our Chapter led the formation of New York New

          8  Visions to develop positive recommendations on how

          9  we could better build lower Manhattan and our City.

         10  One of the recommendations was to adopt a model

         11  building code.  New York City's current Building

         12  Code was last comprehensively updated in 1968, and

         13  is out of date, has confusing organization, and

         14  often ambiguous definitions.

         15                 The adoption of a model code with a

         16  three- year cycle of updates will give New York City

         17  both a state- of- the- art code, and a process to

         18  keep it current.  This code will be modified to

         19  reflect New York's unique density, maintain building

         20  safety for New York's urban environment, while

         21  reflecting the reality of developing sites in the

         22  City.

         23                 Finally, although I may be a

         24  parochial New Yorker, adoption of a well- organized

         25  code with clear language that has been adopted by
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          2  almost all states, will create both safer, higher

          3  quality buildings, and encourage economic

          4  development.

          5                 We applaud the Mayor; Patricia

          6  Lancaster, Building Commissioner; and the Chair of

          7  this Committee, Madeline Provenzano for leading the

          8  efforts to adopt a model code.

          9                 The process of review and adoption

         10  that New York City has undertaken is an inclusive

         11  process that colleagues around the country highly

         12  praise.  By asking more than 400 designers and

         13  construction professional, representing a broad

         14  array of stakeholders, to review every line of IBC,

         15  and every line of the current code, we are combining

         16  the best of what we have with what's been adopted

         17  nationally.

         18                 Many experienced professionals have

         19  donated tens of thousands of hours to develop a

         20  consensus document.  New York will have the best

         21  code in the country.  Current regulations that are

         22  more stringent than the national code will be

         23  incorporated into the new code.  These include the

         24  recently adopted changes based on specific response

         25  to the World Trade Center disaster, the New York
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          2  City place of assemblies chapter.

          3                 Regulations to encourage construction

          4  of affordable housing are also under consideration.

          5                 Code officials around the country are

          6  looking forward to our amended version of the IBC.

          7  I predict many of the amendments will be adopted

          8  nationally.

          9                 It has been a long- term goal of the

         10  AIA to make one model building code in the country,

         11  modified as required for each locality.  The IBC is

         12  that code.  Having been completely or partially

         13  adopted in 47 states, this code's clarity,

         14  organization and system of updating will allow us,

         15  the professionals who use it, to do a better job.

         16                 We at the AIA New York Chapter look

         17  forward to continuing to work with you and the

         18  Department of Buildings on this historic effort to

         19  modernize our City's regulations, to help us build

         20  safer and better buildings.  We strongly support the

         21  legislation in Code 478A that is before you.

         22                 I would be pleased to answer any

         23  questions you have.

         24                 Thank you.

         25                 CHAIRPERSON PROVENZANO: Thank you
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          2  very much.

          3                 MR. VOGEL: Thank you, Chairwoman

          4  Provenzano, and Council Members of the Committee of

          5  Housing and Building.

          6                 My name is Chester T. Vogel, a Fellow

          7  of the American Council of Engineering Companies,

          8  and a Fellow of the American Society of Heating,

          9  Refrigeration, and Air Conditioning Engineers.  Also

         10  President of M- E/Vogel Taylor Engineers, a New York

         11  consulting engineering company.  And I am the

         12  Chairman of the Mechanical/HVAC Boiler Committee of

         13  the New York City Model Code Program, as well as the

         14  ACEC Mechanical Code Committee.  I have practiced in

         15  the New York City construction industry for more

         16  than 45 years, for several years in construction

         17  activities, and for the past 40 years as a member of

         18  the engineering design and consulting community.

         19                 Shortly after my start in consulting,

         20  and coincident with becoming a professional

         21  engineer, the current New York City Building Code

         22  was introduced to the industry in 1968.  Although I

         23  did not participate in the development of that code,

         24  I took a great interest in its interpretation and

         25  application.  And soon thereafter, took an active
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          2  role in code committee activities in concert with

          3  the Department of Buildings.

          4                 During the past 10 years, I have

          5  assisted DOB with the preparation of Technical

          6  Policy and Procedural Notices, clarify mechanical

          7  fire and safety requirements.  I participated on the

          8  World Trade Center Sub- Committee for Ventilation,

          9  culminating in the 2002 current Code Reference

         10  Standard, 13- 1 for the installation of air

         11  conditioning and ventilation systems.  And I

         12  assisted in the implementation of the World Trade

         13  Center Building Code Task Force recommendations for

         14  fuel oil piping and air intake locations included in

         15  the current Local Law 26 of 2004.

         16                 Approximately 18 months ago, and

         17  shortly after the Mayor's Advisory Commission issued

         18  it's recommendations to adopt the model building

         19  code, informing the mechanical -- I assisted the

         20  Department of Buildings in forming the Mechanical

         21  Committee, that would recommend the needed reviews

         22  of the IMC, the International Mechanical Code, and

         23  the related sub- chapters Reference Standards and

         24  the TPPNs of the New York City Building Code, as

         25  well as mechanical portions of the IFGC, the
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          2  International Fuel Gas Code.

          3                 Representing labor, industry,

          4  engineering design, real estate, and construction as

          5  well as New York City government agencies, 35

          6  leaders with interest and expertise in mechanical,

          7  HVAC as well as boilers were selected, and

          8  participated in six panels.

          9                 These six panels, General

         10  Requirements; Ventilation; Boilers and Chimneys;

         11  Equipment, Refrigeration; Piping, including fuel oil

         12  piping and storage, have, during the past 18 months,

         13  met at least once a month, and in addition, met as

         14  subpanel committees, subcommittees, once or twice a

         15  month to reach consensus on the acceptability and

         16  recommended changes to these IMC chapters.

         17                 Nearly 100 amendments have been

         18  written to the ICC Codes, with the safety

         19  requirements and practice requirement that the

         20  Committees determined were important to include in

         21  the model code.

         22                 We believe that we have helped New

         23  York City to meet the short- term goal of a

         24  comprehensive Boiler/HVAC Mechanical Code, with

         25  required modifications necessary to enhance public
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          2  safety and encourage economic growth through the use

          3  of national building standards and technology.

          4                 The IMC and IFGC, and their

          5  amendments will be part of a future bill, and are

          6  extensive and are written in code language with

          7  references to national standards, such as those

          8  currently and commonly in use in New York City from

          9  ASHRAE and NFPA, where appropriate.  Our work was

         10  closely coordinated with the administrative

         11  provisions of the IBC and the Plumbing Code as

         12  amended by the Plumbing Code Committee of the New

         13  York City Model Code Program.

         14                 Therefore, for the reasons stated

         15  above, and in order t acknowledge the extraordinary

         16  efforts of more than 400 volunteers, and the City's

         17  commitment to meet its long- term goal of a

         18  completed model code of 2006, I strongly recommend

         19  your support and adoption of Intro. No. 468A, so

         20  that the remainder of the code work can proceed

         21  forward.

         22                 Thank you.

         23                 CHAIRPERSON PROVENZANO: Thank you.

         24                 And thank all of you, because I know

         25  you're part of that 400 plus that I always talk
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          2  about, so thank you very much.

          3                 Edward DePaola. Gary Higbee.  Herbert

          4  Mandel.  If you are outside, could you come back in.

          5  Tony Saporito.  So I think Herb is not here.  He's

          6  not here?  He was outside, then her left?  Okay.  He

          7  submitted testimony.

          8                 Who ever wants to start.

          9                 MR. SAPORITO: Madam Chairwoman,

         10  Members of the Housing and Buildings Committee, I am

         11  Tony Saporito, Assistant Vice President of the

         12  Mechanical Contractors Association of New York. We

         13  represent the largest number of mechanical and

         14  sprinkler contractors in New York City and Long

         15  Island.

         16                 I am here in support of Intro. No.

         17  478A.

         18                 Our industry supports the efforts by

         19  this Committee, the Department of Buildings, and all

         20  other industry representatives involve in the Model

         21  Code Program process.

         22                 Our Association was asked for, and we

         23  offered, our input into this important legislation.

         24  And we believe that a modern building code will be

         25  better for the industry and for all of us in New
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          2  York.

          3                 We look forward to the continuing

          4  efforts by this Committee and the Buildings

          5  Department to transform the Building Code to help us

          6  all meet the challenges that lay ahead.

          7                 Thank you.

          8                 CHAIRPERSON PROVENZANO: Thank you

          9  very much.

         10                 MR. HIGBEE: Council Members and Madam

         11  Chairman, my name is Gary Higbee.  I'm offering

         12  testimony on behalf of both the Steel Institute of

         13  New York, and the Ornamental Metal Institute of New

         14  York, organizations consisting of contractors

         15  engaged in the erection of structural steel, precast

         16  concrete, glass curtain wall, and architectural and

         17  ornamental and miscellaneous metal products used in

         18  building construction products located in the New

         19  York City metropolitan area.  Our contributing

         20  members collectively employ 4,500 of the City's

         21  ironworkers each year.

         22                 The purpose of my testimony is to

         23  request that you support Into. No. 478A, which calls

         24  for replacing the present City Building Code with a

         25  set of widely- used model codes developed by the
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          2  International Code Council.

          3                 Code modernization is important to

          4  the economic viability of our industry, because to

          5  the extent that it's implementation is timely, it

          6  facilitates the use of the most advanced, proven

          7  materials and methods of construction.  Failure to

          8  support Intro. No. 478A only delays this needed code

          9  modernization.

         10                 Enacting Intro. No. 468A acknowledges

         11  the importance of a two- year effort undertaken to

         12  evaluate, modify, and coordinate the International

         13  Code as a replacement for the City Building Code, an

         14  effort, that you've heard many times here, involving

         15  intense personal commitment of time by hundreds of

         16  industry leaders and technical experts, representing

         17  design, construction, fire service, City agency,

         18  labor, and real estate interests.

         19                 While the amount of time doing

         20  something is not by right a measure of success, it

         21  is essential to recognize, as 478 does, that

         22  adapting a model code to the City's unique

         23  conditions requires painstaking review and analysis.

         24                 The Committees appointed to review

         25  and coordinate the International Codes took on this
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          2  task in good faith, and are nearing conclusion of

          3  their work.  Their efforts were initiated by the

          4  actions of a Mayoral Commission that duly considered

          5  alternatives for modernizing New York City's

          6  Building Code, and determined, that in all areas

          7  examined, organization, comprehensiveness, ease of

          8  understanding, availability to users, code

          9  development process, and comparison to the current

         10  City code, the International Codes were a superior

         11  choice.  This effort is to begin.

         12                 Given the above considerations, the

         13  Steel and the Ornamental Metal Institutes of New

         14  York see no compelling reason to further delay code

         15  modernization.  At a time when the nation's design

         16  and construction industry, product manufacturers,

         17  and enforcement officials are increasingly familiar

         18  with the format and the content of the International

         19  Codes, and with remaining jurisdictions throughout

         20  the State and in the surrounding northeast and

         21  middle Atlantic regions having implemented or in the

         22  final stages of implementing the International

         23  Codes- including the adjacent counties of Nassau,

         24  Suffolk, and Westchester served by the Institutes'

         25  members-  adopting the International Codes
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          2  represents an extraordinary opportunity to modernize

          3  City construction requirements and help simplify the

          4  building regulatory process.

          5                 Therefore, I urge you to strongly

          6  support Bill No. 478A.

          7                 Thank you.

          8                 MR. DEPAOLO: Thank you.  Thank you

          9  all for the opportunity to speak today.  My comments

         10  today are on behalf of a number of organizations.

         11  First, as co- chair, with Irwin Cantor, who you

         12  heard a little earlier today, of the Structural

         13  Foundation Committee, of the New York City Building

         14  Code, which is made up of 45 engineering

         15  professionals who have spent thousands of man hours

         16  reviewing, and more importantly, discussing,

         17  vetting, and improving on every single structural

         18  issue in the IBC code.

         19                 Second, as principal of Severud

         20  Associates Consulting Engineers, and engineering

         21  firm with 75 employees that has been in business in

         22  this City for almost 77 years.  My firm has designed

         23  tens of millions of square feet in public and

         24  private housing, commercial, industrial, and

         25  institutional structures in New York City alone, not
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          2  to mention the rest of the United States, and

          3  numerous countries around the world.

          4                 I am currently the Structural

          5  Engineer of record for One Bryant Park, a commercial

          6  high- rise office building in Midtown that when

          7  complete, will be the second tallest building in

          8  Manhattan.  As well as the American Redevelopment

          9  Program at JFK International Airport, and the

         10  reconstruction of the permanent PATH terminal at the

         11  World Trade Center site.

         12                 Third, as past President of the

         13  Structural Engineers Association of New York, an

         14  organization of more than 500 local structural

         15  engineers.  As it happened, I was President on

         16  September 11, 2001, and our organization mobilized

         17  almost 400 structural engineers, most of them from

         18  New York City, to assist in the rescue and recovery

         19  operations at the World Trade Center.

         20                 During those months, we say some

         21  incredible things. Things that became the catalyst

         22  for us to organize our own codes committee to

         23  perform a survey of all building codes, including

         24  those in other countries, and to compile an in-

         25  depth comparison. These studies were the starting
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          2  point for today's Structural Foundation Committee of

          3  the New York City Building Code.

          4                 Fourth, I was a member of the

          5  ASCE/FEMA team that investigated the collapse of the

          6  World Trade Center towers, as well as the damage to

          7  all the surrounding buildings.  With that team, I

          8  observed first hand, the areas where things might

          9  have been done differently, but maybe even more

         10  important, the incredible successes of the

         11  structures that survived loadings that no structural

         12  engineer in the world ever would have imagined.  We

         13  have used these ideas and concepts in the

         14  enhancements to the IBC Code for the development of

         15  the proposed New York City Building Code.

         16                 And fifth, and finally, personally, I

         17  am a structural engineer registered in 20 states,

         18  and can see the enormous benefits of a common, high-

         19  quality building code which will provide a uniform

         20  degree of safety and reliability to all building

         21  structures, and one that is easily understandable

         22  and as such, will be easily enforceable.

         23                 I strongly urge you to support this

         24  bill.

         25                 Thank you.
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          2                 CHAIRPERSON PROVENZANO: Did you give

          3  us a copy of your testimony?

          4                 MR. DEPAOLA: Yes madam.

          5                 CHAIRPERSON PROVENZANO: Oh, okay.

          6  Because I'm going to look for it.

          7                 We have no one here to ask questions.

          8    That's good, and that's bad.  It speeds up the

          9  time, but thank all of you again for all of input

         10  that you've given us on the code.

         11                 We have one final panel.  There's one

         12  more person coming?  Well let me call the panel.

         13                 Mary Ann Rothman.  Greg Carlson.  JC

         14  Calderone. Brian Meacham.  Okay.  Whoever wants to

         15  start.

         16                 MR. CALDERON: Good morning, good

         17  afternoon Chairperson Provenzano and City Council

         18  Members, if anyone's left.

         19                 My name is JC Calderone. I speak

         20  today as a supporter of 911 family groups to lend

         21  support as well for the Intro. No. 478A and the

         22  Model Code Program.

         23                 I am also a practicing registered

         24  architect in New York, a member of the American

         25  Institute of Architects, and a member of the Society
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          2  of Colombian Architects in New York.

          3                 I've spoken here previously, and this

          4  was at the Building Department forums, including the

          5  2003 Mayoral Code Commission, where I strongly

          6  supported the adoption of the International Building

          7  Code.

          8                 First, I would like to commend

          9  Chairperson Provenzano for submitting Intro. No. 478

         10  last November, and for her support of the Mayor's

         11  Advisory Commission to adopt the IBC for New York

         12  City.

         13                 As a registered architect, I also

         14  support the adoption of the IBC, which has already

         15  been adopted in some 40 states, as it is a more

         16  modern and standardized code that New York City's

         17  current code.  As well, the 2003 enactment of the

         18  State of New York to adopt the IBC is another

         19  reason, I believe, we need to support the adoption

         20  of the IBC.

         21                 The IBC will certainly reduce the

         22  cost of construction as fewer resources will be

         23  directed towards complying to a unique building

         24  code.

         25                 But I am primarily here today to
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          2  thank the City Council, to thank the Mayor's

          3  Advisory Commission, and to thank the Building

          4  Department, Patricia Lancaster, for recognizing,

          5  above all, the need to change the law in light of 9-

          6  11.

          7                 It is for that reason that I ask

          8  publicly, how is it possible that no one is asking

          9  the Port Authority of New York and New Jersey, the

         10  owners of Ground Zero, to change their laws?  When

         11  will New York City formally request Governor Pataki

         12  to initiate a change in the Port Authority's

         13  relationship to the City's building codes?

         14            Just yesterday, the three- year NIST

         15  Federal Investigation of the National Institute of

         16  Standards in Technology, recommended that quasi-

         17  governmental entities, like the Port Authority, no

         18  longer maintain a system of "self- approval" as the

         19  PA is currently allowed.  The NIST investigation

         20  also recommended that code compliance be "certified

         21  by a qualified third party".  Which is not the case.

         22                 Currently, as in the 1993 Port

         23  Authority's Memorandum of Understanding with the

         24  City of New York to meet or exceed codes, the

         25  memorandum allows for code disagreements between the
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          2  Port Authority and the Building Department to be

          3  resolved "by the Port Authority and its Board of

          4  Commissioners".  This is neither ethically or

          5  morally acceptable.  For example, the Port Authority

          6  never tested the fire resistance of the floor

          7  assemblies of the Twin Towers.  The Building

          8  Department was not allowed to enforce New York

          9  City's Building Code, and enforce fire- resistance

         10  tests.

         11                 In closing, if the City of New York

         12  adopts the new Model Code Program, but the Port

         13  Authority of New York and New Jersey remains above

         14  those legal requirements, it will not only be a

         15  tragic irony, but it will be a great disservice to

         16  the people of this City.  No building or agency in

         17  this City should be above the law.

         18                 Thank you very much.

         19                 MS. ROTHMAN: Good afternoon,

         20  Chairwoman Provenzano and Members of the Committee.

         21  All of you.  I'm Mary Ann Rothman, Executive

         22  Director of the Council of New York Cooperatives and

         23  Condominiums, which is a membership organization for

         24  housing co- ops and condos in this City.  In other

         25  words, our members live in this City, inside of
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          2  buildings that will be constructed in the future, in

          3  the shadow of those buildings.  We work there, et

          4  cetera.  And therefore, it is my privilege to be

          5  part of this group of 400 plus people who worked on

          6  this code.

          7                 I'm here today to thank the City

          8  Council for considering it today, to urge prompt

          9  passage of this law, and continuation of a

         10  democratic, cooperative process it's going to give

         11  us state- of- the- art building codes.

         12                 Thank you.

         13                 CHAIRPERSON PROVENZANO: Thank you.

         14                 My sentiments exactly.

         15                 MR. CARLSON: Good day, Council Person

         16  Provenzano and the Members of the Committee.  I am

         17  Gregory J. Carlson, Executive Director of the

         18  Federation of New York Housing Cooperatives and

         19  Condominiums. The Federation is a not- for- profit

         20  building membership organization similar to Mary

         21  Ann's.

         22                 As a member of the committee, and I

         23  will echo what Mary Ann has said, my written

         24  testimony is before you, representing residents that

         25  will eventually live there.  At times, when things
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          2  got technical, and my head would spin around by the

          3  technical aspects of it, we were there to ensure

          4  that those that live in the building would be safely

          5  and secure, and the Federation does urge the support

          6  of Into. No. 478A.

          7                 Thank you for your time.

          8                 MR. MEACHAM: Good afternoon,

          9  Chairperson Provenzano and City Council Members.  I

         10  appreciate the opportunity to attend the meeting

         11  today and make some comments in support of the

         12  legislation and the adoption of the model codes,

         13  particularly, the International Building Code and

         14  the other family of I codes.

         15                 My name is Brian Meacham, I am an

         16  engineer with the consulting firm of ARUP at 155

         17  Avenue of the Americas.  And I also chair the Risk

         18  and Security Advisory Committee for the Department

         19  of Buildings Code Development Program.

         20                 The IBC and ICC is a wonderful code

         21  development organization and it brings a lot to the

         22  City and the City brings a lot to the code

         23  development program.  The IBC is among the best

         24  codes, I believe, in the world.  And I have dealt

         25  with various codes around the world, and I urge the
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          2  adoption and use of the code in the City for the

          3  benefit of all the residents.

          4                 Thank you very much.

          5                 CHAIRPERSON PROVENZANO: Thank you

          6  very much.

          7                 That concludes our testimony today.

          8  I would like to thank all those who testified, and

          9  all of those that were here, although the room is

         10  empty now, I thank all of the folks that were here,

         11  all of the union folks.

         12                 Someone made a comment to me before

         13  the hearing, when they had looked around, they said,

         14   "hey, everybody's wearing a blue button today".

         15  And I think that pretty much tells the story.

         16                 So again, we're hopeful that we'll be

         17  able to pass this in the very near future, and I ask

         18  those of you that are in a position to do so, to

         19  push for that to happen.

         20                 Again, I regret that there are only a

         21  few of us here today, and it's unfortunate, you

         22  know, as time goes by, they ask questions and maybe

         23  if I could get Council Members to sit and listen to

         24  testimony they would get educated.  But that seems

         25  to be a very difficult thing today.  I thank my
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          2  colleague Leroy Comrie for being here with me.  He's

          3  one of the ones that usually hangs out with me to

          4  the bitter end.

          5                 We also had the International Code

          6  folks here today, and we thank them for all their

          7  efforts.

          8                 I know Gail has been bouncing -- we

          9  have another committee, so she's been bouncing back

         10  and forth.  She's usually one of my "to the bitter

         11  end" folks too.

         12                 Gail, do you want to vote on the 607?

         13                 COUNCIL PERSON BREWER: I vote aye,

         14  Madam Chair. Thank you very much.

         15                 CHAIRPERSON PROVENZANO: Thank you,

         16  and again, thank all of you.  Have a good weekend.

         17                 Wait, wait, wait.

         18                 And 478A is laid over.  Hopefully,

         19  next time that statement will change.  Thank you.

         20                 (The following testimonies were read

         21  into the record)

         22                 (Written testimony submitted or the

         23  record by John W. McCormick, Code of Consultant

         24  Professional Engineers)

         25                 I am writing to you to express my
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          2  support of the proposed new local law Intro 478A.

          3  The purpose of the legislation is to revise the

          4  building codes which govern the construction of new

          5  buildings in New York City.

          6                 The proposed new building laws are

          7  based on the International Building Code, which is

          8  broadly adopted throughout the United States,

          9  including New York State.  It is based on more than

         10  50 years of model code development in many varied

         11  jurisdictions, including many large cities.

         12                 Active committees have modified the

         13  provisions of the International Building Code to

         14  adapt it to the special building construction issues

         15  specific to New York City.  In my professional

         16  opinion, the new code will serve to update the

         17  provisions of the existing code, adopted in 1968,

         18  and will address the unique characteristics of the

         19  New York City building stock in order to provide

         20  life safety to occupants and emergency personnel and

         21  to conserve property.

         22                 I heartily recommend adoption of

         23  Intro 478A.

         24                 Very truly your.

         25                 (Written testimony submitted by
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          2  Marolyn Davenport, Senior Vice President, Real

          3  Estate Board of New York)

          4                 The Real Estate Board of New York,

          5  representing over 10,000 real property owners,

          6  brokers, and managers of high- rise commercial and

          7  residential property, cautiously supports Intro.

          8  478A.

          9                 REBNY has been actively involved in

         10  all aspects of the building code review process and

         11  we have been impressed by the efforts of many,

         12  particularly the employees of the Building

         13  Department and other City agencies, which have gone

         14  into it so far.

         15                 We have stated before, our support

         16  for basing the New York City Building Code on the

         17  International Building Code, not on the NFPA 5000.

         18  This represents the beginning of that process.

         19                 We are cautious, however, because

         20  there are a great many difficult and complex issues

         21  yet to be resolved which will take much more

         22  discussion in the review committees.  It is

         23  difficult to give a ringing endorsement of

         24  legislation which represents just the beginning

         25  phase of the process -- where the majority of the
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          2  substance is outstanding.

          3                 Further, the timeline to resolve

          4  those issues is very tight.  Basically, everything

          5  must be done in the next 12 months.

          6                 We are disappointed that the Plumbing

          7  Code being proposed does not permit the use of

          8  plastic pipe beyond very limited applications.

          9  Forty- four states allow the use of plastic pipe

         10  without restrictions.  One of the rationales go

         11  going to the International Building Code was to

         12  allow the same modern technology -- although plastic

         13  pipe can no longer be considered new technology --

         14  that the rest of the country uses as a matter of

         15  routine.

         16                 We look forward to working with the

         17  Department of Buildings and the City Council on the

         18  very important sections of the code still to come.

         19                 (Written testimony submitted for the

         20  record by Francis J. Lombardi, Chief Engineer, the

         21  Port Authority of New York and New Jersey)

         22                 This statement is to express support

         23  for the New York City Model Code Program and the

         24  enactment of this bill, Intro 478A.  The Department

         25  of Buildings should be commended for taking the

                                                            146

          1  COMMITTEE ON HOUSING AND BUILDINGS

          2  initiative to launch this program.

          3                 Although New York City Building Code

          4  is recognized as one of the most stringent codes in

          5  the country, its convoluted nature and overall lack

          6  of clarity need to be improved, particularly, the

          7  fact that it has not undergone major revisions since

          8  1968.

          9                 The Model Code Program is an

         10  unprecedented public/private partnership of many

         11  professionals involved in its Technical and Advisory

         12  Committees, whose members have been working together

         13  to craft the new construction codes for the City.

         14  These new construction codes will take the best from

         15  the national model codes and Reference Standards,

         16  from the International Code Council (ICC), the

         17  National Fire Protection Association (NFPA), and

         18  other national codes and standards, and will fit the

         19  high- density urban environment needs of the City

         20  and, at the same time, will retain the most

         21  important public safety provisions that are part of

         22  the current New York City Building Code.

         23                 The Port Authority is a responsible

         24  and responsive governmental agency, with a long-

         25  standing policy of meeting our exceeding municipal
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          2  building and fire codes at all of its facilities.

          3                 The Port Authority has put this

          4  policy in writing, and has signed Memorandums of

          5  Understanding with the New York City's Department of

          6  Buildings, as well as the Fire Department, and most

          7  recently re- affirmed this policy by signing the

          8  World Trade Center Redevelopment Agreement.  The

          9  Port Authority is very appreciative of the

         10  cooperation it has received from the Department of

         11  Buildings whenever code interpretations were needed

         12  by the Port Authority.

         13                 With the upcoming World Trade Center

         14  redevelopment and the Port Authority's commitment to

         15  public safety and compliance with the local building

         16  code, the Port Authority strongly feels the need for

         17  New York City to have the best construction codes

         18  possible and ensure that the City is a safe place to

         19  live, work, and build in the 21st century.

         20                 International Code Council's model

         21  codes (International Codes) are well recognized

         22  throughout the country and are also used by FEMA and

         23  other Federal agencies.

         24                 The International Codes have been

         25  adopted by 48 states, including New York, New
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          2  Jersey, and the New England states. These codes are

          3  now being followed by the Port Authority at its

          4  facilities in New Jersey and they would have also

          5  been followed outside the New York City limit if the

          6  agency operated any of them. Our experience in using

          7  the International Codes has been very positive.

          8                 As a bi- state governmental agency,

          9  the Port Authority is involved in the construction

         10  and operation of facilities in the region and can

         11  see the importance of having uniformity in the

         12  building codes in the region.

         13                 The new construction codes bring New

         14  York City in line with national building standards

         15  and technology and will ease the burden on the

         16  construction industry, while at the same time

         17  retaining the highest public safety standards in a

         18  high- density building population.

         19                 The International Codes are regularly

         20  updated through a rigorous public hearing process t

         21  keep up to date with advancements in technology.

         22  Provisions in these codes and the rationale behind

         23  them are easily understandable with the formal

         24  interpretations and explanatory material published

         25  by the International Code Council.
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          2                 Recognizing the many positive aspects

          3  of the International Codes, the Port Authority is

          4  very supportive of the New York City Model Code

          5  Program, and is actively participating in many of

          6  its 13 Technical Committees to supply input from the

          7  lessons learned since 1993.

          8                 The Port Authority also participated

          9  in the Department of Buildings' World Trade Center

         10  Building Code Task Force established after the

         11  events of 9- 11, and has shared with the Task Force

         12  the life safety enhancements implemented at the

         13  World Trace Center after the 1993 terrorist bombing.

         14    Many of these enhancements are now included in

         15  Local Law 26.

         16                 The Port Authority's commitment t

         17  building safety remains a constant and continuing

         18  goal.  The Port Authority share the goals of the

         19  Model Code Program and fully supports its efforts on

         20  the new Construction Codes for the City that will

         21  keep up with the advancements in technology and

         22  bring uniformity within the region.

         23                 The Port Authority strongly feels

         24  that passage of Intro 478A is extremely important

         25  and urges the City Council Members to support this
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          2  bill.

          3                 (Written testimony submitted for the

          4  record by Ron Burton, Vice President for Advocacy

          5  and Research, The Building Owners and Managers

          6  Association (BOMA))

          7                 The Building Owners and Managers

          8  Association (BOMA) International is a dynamic

          9  international federation of 108 local associations,

         10  including our affiliate in New York City, that

         11  represents the interests of building owners and

         12  managers, as well as the myriad of others involved

         13  in this nation's commercial real estate industry.

         14  BOMA International's 19,000 members own or manage

         15  more than 9 billion square feet of downtown and

         16  suburban commercial properties and facilities in

         17  North America and abroad.

         18                 BOMA International strongly supports

         19  the adoption of the International Building Code, or

         20  IBC, in all jurisdictions across the United States.

         21  Therefore, BOMA International respectfully

         22  encourages the New York City Council t adopt Intro.

         23  No. 478A, a bill that provides a timeframe for the

         24  adoption and periodic updating of a modern

         25  construction code or codes used on the national
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          2  model construction codes developed by the

          3  International Code Council.

          4                 Since BOMA International submitted

          5  its statement at the last Council hearing on this

          6  subject on November 30, 2004, the International

          7  Building Code has been adopted or is expected to be

          8  adopted by even more jurisdiction in the United

          9  States including the states of Texas and California.

         10                 While the regional code structure has

         11  served the nation's needs well in the past, a single

         12  set of codes is in the best interest of the building

         13  community and the general public as we look to the

         14  future.  As the international marketplace moves

         15  toward standardization in building performance and

         16  code requirements, a single set of codes is called

         17  for that is responsive to the ever- changing

         18  competitive marketplace.  That is the basis of

         19  BOMA's support for the adoption of the International

         20  Building Code, and BOMA International hopes the New

         21  York City Council shares that view.

         22                 There are substantial advantages in

         23  all jurisdictions in the United States and in

         24  particular New York City, to adopt one model code

         25  developed by the International Code Council.
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          2                 1. The ICC is the only organization

          3  of its kind in the United States or abroad that

          4  publishes model codes covering all aspects of

          5  building design and construction with broad purpose

          6  of safeguarding public health, safety, and welfare.

          7                 2.  New York City's adoption of the

          8  International Building Code would mean that the goal

          9  of having code enforcement officials, design

         10  professionals, contractors, and building owners and

         11  managers working with a consistent set of

         12  requirements throughout the United States would be

         13  closer to a reality.  That will enhance economic

         14  development by reducing or eliminating regional or

         15  jurisdictional differences while ensuring the most

         16  effective public health and safety requirements.

         17                 3.  Manufacturers can put their

         18  efforts into research and development rather than

         19  designing to different sets of standards, thereby

         20  promoting innovation, cost- effective product

         21  development, and keeping in step with state- of-

         22  the- art technology.

         23                 4. Uniform education and

         24  certification programs can be used in all major

         25  jurisdictions, enhancing the knowledge and
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          2  professionalism of both code officials and those

          3  involved in the design and construction industry.

          4                 5.  The adoption of the International

          5  Building Code will lead to more consistent code

          6  enforcement, higher quality construction, and

          7  enhanced public health and safety.

          8                 6.  The International Building Code

          9  promotes streamlining of the building regulatory

         10  system by bringing consistency and compatibility to

         11  multiple layers of requirements that currently exist

         12  at the local, state, and federal level.

         13                 In summary, we believe the adoption

         14  of the International Building Code is an essential

         15  element in providing New York City with the most

         16  effective and up- to- date building regulatory

         17  system for enhanced public safety without undue

         18  adverse effects on continued economic development.

         19                 We hope that New York City will join

         20  the growing ranks of major jurisdictions that have

         21  already adopted the International Building Code, and

         22  therefore, the 19,000 members of BOMA International

         23  respectfully encourage the City Council to pass

         24  Intro. No. 478A and adopt the International Building

         25  Code.
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          2                 (Written testimony submitted for the

          3  record by Anne M. Davis, President of the Board of

          4  Directors of the Center for Independence of the

          5  Disabled in New York)

          6                 I am President of the Board of

          7  Directors for the Center for Independence of the

          8  Disabled in New York (CIDNY), a nonprofit resource

          9  center staffed by and for people with disabilities.

         10  I am also active in several other organizations

         11  serving people with disabilities, and am a Board

         12  Member of the Disabilities Network of New York City,

         13  a citywide coalition, which nominated me to serve on

         14  the Accessibility Committee of the Model Code

         15  Program.

         16                 As a person with a disability, I

         17  obviously have a special interest in seeing that New

         18  York City adopts an up- to- date and effective

         19  Building Code that takes into account the needs of

         20  people with physical and sensory disabilities.  I

         21  have participated in this process because I would

         22  like New York to become a world leader in universal

         23  design -- a city everyone can enjoy, whether living

         24  here, working here, or just visiting here -- a city

         25  to grow old in.
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          2                 It is our hope that the Council will

          3  adopt a new code based on the IBC but better than

          4  the IBC.  That is the mission of each of the 13

          5  Technical Committees.

          6                 With respect to Chapter 11 of the

          7  IBC, Accessibility, the City should use those

          8  provisions of the IBC that fit our City's needs but

          9  also fit the best parts of our current law into to

         10  the IBC.  To these elements should be added

         11  improvements based on experience and/or the best

         12  aspects of ANSI and other national standards.

         13                 I support the development of a new

         14  building code for New York City based on the IBC but

         15  only if the build environment it prescribes will be

         16  fully accessible to me and other people with

         17  disabilities.  If we have the collective will, New

         18  York City can become a model city for the 21st

         19  century and beyond.

         20                 (Written testimony submitted for the

         21  record by Stephen J. Cassidy, President, Uniformed

         22  Firefighters Association of Greater New York)

         23                 Chairwoman Provenzano and Committee

         24  Members, I apologize that I cannot be there to speak

         25  before you in person today.
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          2                 My name is Stephen Cassidy and I

          3  represent more than 8,800 firefighters here in New

          4  York City.  I am proud to be standing with my

          5  brothers and sisters in the fire service in

          6  opposition to Intro. No. 478A, and in strong support

          7  of Intro. No. 368.

          8                 We believe the use of the National

          9  Fire Protection Association's model building code as

         10  the basis for New York City's next building code is

         11  in the best interest of firefighter safety and

         12  public safety.

         13                 Every day, members of the UFA see the

         14  damage that can be done when buildings are not safe.

         15    Every day, we go into buildings when they are most

         16  dangerous.  And, every day we see how important

         17  safety codes are.  But, the folks who develop the

         18  building code proposed for adoption in Intro. No.

         19  478A, the International Building Code (IBC), say we

         20  don't have the needed expertise to make real

         21  decisions about what should be included in their

         22  safety code.

         23                 I know that for the Department of

         24  Buildings and for the Bloomberg Administration this

         25  is an important issue.  They have invested a lot of
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          2  time in this.  But for New York City firefighters,

          3  there is no more important issue than our safety and

          4  the safety of the citizens that we protect.  We want

          5  to know that the very basis of New York City's next

          6  building code is done correctly.

          7                 I want you to know that our technical

          8  people have looked carefully at the requirements in

          9  each code under consideration and it is clear to

         10  them that the NFPA code (as called for in Intro. No.

         11  368) is safer.  Supporting Intro. No. 368 will

         12  better protect the health and safety of firefighters

         13  and the people we serve.

         14                 As you know, the UFA has written to

         15  Council Members on that point before.  I also know

         16  major fire chief's organizations have praised NFPA's

         17  code and its service as better than what New York

         18  City will receive from the people who developed

         19  building proposed for adoption under Intro. No.

         20  478A.

         21                 But, even if the current editions of

         22  both codes were the same, I ask you to think about

         23  which one will be the best code for New York City in

         24  the future.  The code containment in Intro. No. 468A

         25  was developed using the least restrictive
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          2  requirements from three other model building codes.

          3  Also, you must consider that Intro. No. 478A's

          4  supporters say it will be cheaper to implement, even

          5  though they cannot produce any tangible evidence of

          6  that.

          7                 It is also important to note that

          8  Intro. No. 478A will not only adopt the IBC, it will

          9  adopt the International Plumbing Code and the

         10  International Mechanical code, two other codes that

         11  are flawed.  Those codes should not be the basis for

         12  New York City's plumbing and mechanical code.

         13                 Instead, I think New York City

         14  firefighters deserve to have a nationally recognized

         15  code that is created with their input.  New York

         16  City firefighters and all New Yorkers deserve to

         17  know that the basis of the building code used in New

         18  York City comes from balanced input involving every

         19  interested group.  That is the least that the City

         20  Council can do to reassure people who live in, work

         21  in, and visit the City.

         22                 NFPA has been focused on

         23  strengthening building safety for more than one

         24  hundred years.  The Association has long been

         25  heavily involved in reviewing and preventing fire
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          2  tragedies in New York City.  Those efforts go back

          3  to the Triangle Shirtwaist Factory fire in the early

          4  1900s and continue through the 9- 11 investigations.

          5    Each and every time, NFPA has been there to help

          6  us better understand how to make New York City

          7  safer.

          8                 Also, as you have already heard,

          9  NFPA's construction codes are required by the

         10  Federal Government to help protect the safety of

         11  hospital patients and nursing home residents.  We

         12  have all worked fires that have hit those kinds of

         13  health care facilities and we know the special needs

         14  that patients there have. I think it is very telling

         15  that the Federal Government says the NFPA is the

         16  only code developer that has the ability to help

         17  protect those who are most vulnerable.

         18                 That is why I am convinced that

         19  NFPA's building code is the best basis for New York

         20  City's building code.  After all, we have waited

         21  more than 35 years to update our building code.  If

         22  we are going to do that, we should do it right.  We

         23  need to choose a code that will protect our City and

         24  it's people for years to come.

         25                 I ask you to support the fire service
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          2  in New York City.  Vote against Intro. No. 478A.

          3  Instead, support Intro. No. 368 and a building code

          4  that was developed for everyone, using input from

          5  everyone.

          6                 Thank you for your time.

          7                 (Written testimony submitted for the

          8  record by Richard T. Anderson, President, New York

          9  Building Congress)

         10                 On November 30, 2004, I testified

         11  before this Committee in support of Intro. No. 478,

         12  the blueprint bill for the International Building

         13  Code (IBC).  This bill set forth a process for

         14  reviewing the IBC, amending it to reflect New York

         15  City's particular needs, and then incorporating it

         16  into a final New York City code.  The Building

         17  Congress continues to support the IBC and encourages

         18  this Committee to endorse this important

         19  legislation.

         20                 The Building Congress is a leadership

         21  coalition of the design construction and real estate

         22  industry.  Our members represent all aspects of

         23  construction, from the architects that draw plans

         24  for buildings, to the construction companies that

         25  raise the structures, to the organizations that
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          2  manage the finished products.

          3                 The New York City Building Code has

          4  not undergone a significant revision since 1968, in

          5  spite of advances in the building industry.

          6  Adoption of the IBC would not only modernize the

          7  building code and bring it into conformity with

          8  codes of 44 states; it will set up mechanisms for

          9  future review and revision every three years.  This

         10  will ensure that the City's building code remains on

         11  the cutting edge of building technology.

         12                 Members of the Council are aware of a

         13  competing code before the Council's consideration,

         14  the NFPA 5000.  We believe the NFPA 5000 is an

         15  inferior code and its implementation would be

         16  detrimental to our industry.

         17                 The NFPA 5000 is a new code.  Few

         18  localities have adopted it, and it was rejected by

         19  Dallas, Denver, and Phoenix when they considered

         20  updating their codes.  The NFP has no past

         21  experience with a complete model code.  As we stated

         22  in our November 30 testimony, New York City, with

         23  its unique building density, height and security

         24  needs, should not adopt a code whose efficiency and

         25  success has not been tested.
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          2                 Conversely, the IBC is base on three

          3  national codes that have been in effect for decades,

          4  and therefore, has a wealth of experience and

          5  history behind it.  The International Code Council,

          6  the organization that wrote the IBC, has extensive

          7  experience in writing codes, and it offers a superb

          8  information support system.  The IBC is coordinated,

          9  comprehensive, and undergoes regular reviews and

         10  updates.

         11                 Under the leadership of Building's

         12  Commissioner Patricia Lancaster, the design,

         13  construction, and real estate industry worked

         14  closely with the City to modify the IBC to fit New

         15  York's unique building environment.  This continuing

         16  dialogue is allowing the best provisions of the

         17  City's building code to be merged with the IBC,

         18  particularly in regard to the City's stringent

         19  safety and high- density building standards.  Unlike

         20  the NFPA, the IBC code has been tailored to New York

         21  City's needs.  In tailoring the IBC to the City's

         22  needs, it was recognized that the one area where the

         23  NFPA excelled was in regard to fire protection.

         24  Accordingly, the NFPA's fire protection guidelines

         25  were integrated into the IBC.
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          2                 By voting in favor of the IBC, the

          3  City Council Committee on Housing and Buildings is

          4  ensuring that New York City will adopt a building

          5  code that is proactive and shaped in collaboration

          6  with the organizations that are governed by it.

          7                 (Written testimony submitted for the

          8  record by Linda Gutman, United Spinal Association)

          9                 The United Spinal Association

         10  (formerly the Eastern Paralyzed Veterans

         11  Association) is proud to have been involved in the

         12  issues of building codes and accessibility for New

         13  Yorkers with disabilities since our inception in

         14  1946.  From our City's ground breaking laws to

         15  provide handicapped parking to veterans returning

         16  from World War II, through the early "barrier- free"

         17  requirements in our building code and co- authoring

         18  our current Local Law 58 accessibility requirements,

         19  to our leadership ensuring that New York City has

         20  the most comprehensive accessibility laws to meet

         21  the needs of today's City, the United Spinal

         22  Association has dedicated itself t advocating for

         23  the best accessibility possible in the laws and

         24  regulations governing building construction in our

         25  City.
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          2                 Continuing in this spirit of

          3  commitment to our members, we fully support the

          4  passage of Intro. No. 478A, legislation what (sic)

          5  would amend the administrative code of the City of

          6  New York, in relation to enacting the New York City

          7  Plumbing Code based on the 2003 edition of the

          8  International Plumbing Code published by the

          9  International Code Council and enacting

         10  administrative provisions applicable to such New

         11  York City Plumbing Code and to such other codes as

         12  may hereafter be enacted by the City based on the

         13  2003 International Code Council (ICC) family of

         14  codes, particularly the ICC International Building

         15  Code (IBC) and its requirements for accessibility

         16  for persons with disabilities.

         17                 The newest version of the IBC (the

         18  2003 code with its 2004 Supplement) is being

         19  reviewed for adoption by the New York City Model

         20  Building Code Accessibility Committee. This document

         21  is the result of over 10 years of deliberations and

         22  negotiations with the Federal Department of Housing

         23  and Urban Development (HUD) and the Federal

         24  Architectural and Transportation Barriers Compliance

         25  Board (Access Board) to insure (sic) that, to the
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          2  greatest extent possible, states and localities that

          3  adopt the IBC will have building codes that meet or

          4  exceed the expectations and mandates for

          5  accessibility established by the Federal Fair

          6  Housing Amendments Act (FHAA) and the Americans with

          7  Disabilities Act (ADA) respectively.

          8                 The benefits to our members and

          9  others with disabilities are obvious.  If the civil

         10  rights protections afforded by Federal lay are

         11  reflected in a city building code, the individual

         12  who uses a wheelchair will know that the apartment

         13  he hopes to lease will meet the accessibility

         14  requirements established by HUD.

         15                 The hard- of- hearing New Yorker will

         16  know that the pay phone in the subway or restaurant

         17  will have the ability to increase the volume so she

         18  can hold a conversation with the person on the other

         19  end of the phone line.

         20                 Blind persons will be provided

         21  Braille signs to indicate safe exits in case of a

         22  hotel fire.  Our current City Building Code provides

         23  none of these assurances or protections.

         24                 Simply stated, the ICC International

         25  Building Code being considered for adoption by the
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          2  Department of Buildings provides the most

          3  comprehensive and up- to- date level of

          4  accessibility available.  Neither our current

          5  building code, nor any alternative model code can

          6  make that claim.

          7                 The National Fire Protection

          8  Association (NFPA) NFPA 5000 Building Code has

          9  recently been suggested as an alternative to the ICC

         10  Codes as a basis for the New York City Building

         11  Code.  The NFPA has a long and respected history in

         12  the field of life safety; unfortunately, the

         13  accessibility requirements of its building code,

         14  only in its first edition, fall short of those in

         15  the IBC.

         16                 The International Building Code

         17  better reflects the level of accessibility afforded

         18  by the New York City Building Code. More

         19  importantly, the Federal Government has worked

         20  closely with the ICC to insure that the IBC access

         21  requirements reflect Federal access mandates, while

         22  NFPA has remained "out of the loop" on these

         23  critical negotiations.  In fact, the new ADA

         24  Accessibility Guidelines will reflect the IBC

         25  Accessible Means of Egress requirements, while the
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          2  Access Board specifically rejected the NFPA request

          3  to recognize the NFPA 5000 requirements as

          4  comparable.

          5                 Simply, the ICC provides New Yorkers

          6  with an accessibility model that closely reflects

          7  our Federal access mandates and is recognized by

          8  both the Access Board and HUD as the national

          9  standard- setter for access.

         10                 Until NFPA can develop a code that

         11  meets or exceeds the access requirements of the

         12  Federal Government, and can be recognized by the

         13  Federal Government as doing so, adopting the NFPA

         14  Building Code would be a disservice to business,

         15  developers, designers, and most importantly,

         16  disabled persons in New York.

         17                 Sadly, New York City's current

         18  building code accessibility requirements are over 17

         19  years old.  Not only are they out of date as far as

         20  reflecting the best accessibility for persons with

         21  disabilities, but also predate, and fall short of,

         22  the major Federal access mandates that are

         23  applicable in building construction today.

         24                 As a result, building owners,

         25  designers, and developers in New York City are not
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          2  only encouraged to violate Federal access laws when

          3  they comply with the New York City Building Code,

          4  but are virtually insured to do so when they rely on

          5  our outdated building code access provisions.

          6                 From the construction of condominiums

          7  t the application of fire alarm requirements and the

          8  installation of elevators that are safe for persons

          9  in wheelchairs in a fire, the current City Building

         10  Code virtually guarantees that a permit issued by

         11  DOB will result in a violation of Federal law.

         12  Adopting the ICC codes can not only benefit persons

         13  with disabilities, but developers and designers as

         14  well.

         15                 The model building code promised to

         16  New Yorkers with disabilities and other stakeholders

         17  in our City by the Department of Building's efforts

         18  to adopt the ICC codes is a promise of better and

         19  more enforceable access for people with

         20  disabilities.  It is a promise of safer and more

         21  usable buildings for everyone with a disability that

         22  lives in or visits our City.

         23                 Accordingly, the United Spinal

         24  Association supports the adoption of the ICC codes

         25  as proposed by Mayor Bloomberg and the New York City
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          2  Department of Buildings.

          3                 (Written testimony submitted for the

          4  record by Stanley Dawe, FDNY)

          5                 I have been involved with the

          6  Department of Buildings Model Code Program from its

          7  inception.

          8                 I retired from the New York City Fire

          9  Department in January, 2004.  I have voluntarily

         10  continued as Chair of the Fire Protection Technical

         11  Committee of the Model Code Program because of ny

         12  strong belief that the new building code being

         13  produced will enhance the fire safety of millions of

         14  people who live, work, and play in New York City on

         15  a daily basis.

         16                 At the same time, the work of the

         17  Model Code Program will create a new, more

         18  competitive environment for the construction and

         19  real estate industries in New York City.

         20                 I ask that you vote favorable on

         21  Intro. No. 478A with full confidence that your

         22  favorable vote will save lives, reduce property loss

         23  from fire, and enhance New York City's economic

         24  future.

         25                 (Written testimony submitted for the
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          2  record by William Stein, AIA)

          3                 My name is William Stein.  I am a

          4  partner with Dattner Architects and have over 25

          5  years experience as a practicing architect in New

          6  York City.  I serve as the chair of the Egress

          7  Technical Committee for the New York City Model Code

          8  Adoption Program.

          9                 I am here to testify in support of

         10  Intro. No. 478A and urge the City Council to adopt

         11  the 2003 International Building Code for New York

         12  City.

         13                 The Egress Committee is one of 13

         14  Technical Committees established by the Department

         15  of Buildings to review the content of the

         16  International Building Code, or IBC.  The Egress

         17  Committee exemplifies the inclusive, consensus-

         18  based process which the Department implemented for

         19  adoption of the IBC.

         20                 The Committee includes

         21  representatives of the Department of Buildings, Fire

         22  Department, Department of Design and Construction,

         23  Empire State Development Corporation, the Port

         24  Authority of New York and New Jersey, the Real

         25  Estate Board of New York, the AIA New York Chapter,
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          2  architects, engineers and construction

          3  professionals.

          4                 Over the past two years, the Egress

          5  Committee has comprehensively reviewed the egress

          6  provisions of the IBC to insure that the high safety

          7  and construction standards found in the City's

          8  current code are retained in the IBC.  Many of the

          9  egress provisions of the IBC are in fact, comparable

         10  to current New York City requirements.  Where

         11  provisions differ, the Committee carefully

         12  considered appropriate modifications to the IBC to

         13  incorporate current code provisions and to modernize

         14  or simplify the current code without sacrificing

         15  safety. The modifications respond to the specific

         16  needs of New York City's urban environment. The

         17  Committee's recommendations are consensuses (sic)

         18  based and reflect the views of all stakeholders.

         19                 The International Building Code is

         20  the emerging national standard and has been widely

         21  adopted throughout the nation, including New York

         22  State, New Jersey, and Pennsylvania. Its adoption

         23  will simplify and facilitate construction in New

         24  York City by providing a set of clear, predictable,

         25  nationally accepted code provisions.
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          2                 The extensive resources of the

          3  International Code Council, which publishes the IBC,

          4  will help us with training, use, and interpretation

          5  of the code.  In contrast, the NFPA 5000 code has

          6  not been adopted in any major jurisdiction.  It's

          7  adoption would put New York City out of step with

          8  the rest of the country and potentially put the City

          9  at an economic disadvantage.

         10                 The IBC code development process,

         11  which updates the code every three years, will

         12  enable New York City to have a significant voice in

         13  code improvements and to benefit from current

         14  research on building standards, while always

         15  retaining the ability to accept, reject, or modify

         16  national standards to suit our local conditions.

         17                 New York is the nation's largest

         18  city, and many jurisdictions are very interested in

         19  our approach to code and life safety issues.  By

         20  adopting the International Building Code, New York

         21  City will take a leadership role in code development

         22  efforts nationally and internationally.

         23                 For these reasons, I urge you to

         24  support adoption of the International Building Code

         25  with modifications as the Building Code for New York
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          2  City.

          3                 (Written testimony submitted for the

          4  record by Pamela J. Loeffelman, AIA, Perkins

          5  Eastman)

          6                 While unable to attend the hearing

          7  scheduled for June 24, 2005, I wanted to testify in

          8  support of Intro. No. 478A.

          9                 I am a principal at Perkins Eastman,

         10  and a registered architect in the State of New York.

         11  With approximately 25 years of professional

         12  experience.

         13                 I was a member of the New York City's

         14  AIA Board from 2000 to 2002 and a member of the

         15  Mayoral Commission that advised on the consideration

         16  of adopting a model building code for New York City.

         17    I am also currently a member of the Managing

         18  Committee of the Department of Building's Model Code

         19  Program.

         20                 In 2001, I was actively involved in

         21  the Mayor's Task Force Examining Operations of the

         22  Department of Buildings.  The events of September

         23  11, 2001 caused these efforts to be refocused on a

         24  re- examination of the way buildings are designed

         25  and constructed in New York City.  In those days,
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          2  just after September 11, the need for an updated

          3  code seemed inevitable.  How could anyone argue that

          4  changes were required?

          5                 The question became, if New York City

          6  required substantial modifications to the existing

          7  building code to take into account concerns brought

          8  to light after the tragedy of September 11, what

          9  form should these changes take?  A new building code

         10  based on national models, that include the benefits

         11  of ongoing, extensive experience in writing codes,

         12  and conducting research on the latest passive and

         13  active materials and building systems seemed like

         14  the reasonable direction to go.  Not only would

         15  current best practices be taken into consideration

         16  by using a model code as a starting point, but also

         17  there would be an established mechanism for updating

         18  the code in the future.

         19                 It is now almost four years later.

         20  The International Building Code has been the focus

         21  of over 400 volunteers, representing the numerous

         22  constituencies that make up the building industry,

         23  working together to create a model code that is

         24  specifically tailored t the unique requirements of

         25  New York City.
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          2                 Members of the City Council, I urge

          3  you to recognize the efforts of your building

          4  community to ensure that the New York City code is

          5  both up to date, and responsive to our local needs

          6  by implementing Intro. No. 478A.

          7                 (Written testimony submitted for the

          8  record by Melissa Barbour, New York City Fire

          9  Sprinkler Contractor's Association)

         10                 My name is Melissa Barbour.  I am the

         11  Executive Director of the New York Fire Sprinkler

         12  Contractor's Association of New York.  Our members

         13  install, sell, repair, and inspect fire suppression

         14  systems and system components.  Previously, I worked

         15  as the Assistant Vice President of the Mechanical

         16  Contractors Association of New York for eight years.

         17                 I am here today to speak in favor of

         18  adopting the International Building Code as the

         19  model code for the City of New York.  Adopting the

         20  International Building Code and I- Codes along with

         21  a process to require continuous updating will ensure

         22  that New York City will remain the preeminent city

         23  to live and build in.

         24                 However, I am also here to express my

         25  reservations concerning the "registered journeyman"

                                                            176

          1  COMMITTEE ON HOUSING AND BUILDINGS

          2  section of the Administrative portion of the

          3  International Building Code specific to New York

          4  City.

          5                 My concern with regard to this

          6  provision is how it will be utilized in the future.

          7  I want to ensure that persons who do not attend a

          8  state registered union apprenticeship will be

          9  allowed to become New York City Department of

         10  Buildings registered journeymen.  This is for two

         11  reasons.

         12                 First, if the new code is adopted as

         13  presently written, being a registered journeyman is

         14  a prerequisite to obtaining a New York City fire

         15  suppression license.  A person should not have to

         16  graduate from a union apprenticeship program in

         17  order to obtain a fire suppression license.

         18                 Second, journeyman registration

         19  creates a class of individuals that licensed

         20  contractors may ultimately be required to employ on

         21  worksites, driving up the already escalating costs

         22  to build in New York City.

         23                 Further, I also believe that

         24  appointing a registered journeyman to the license

         25  board is not appropriate.  This individual may end
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          2  up sitting in judgement of his/her own employer.

          3                 We believe that, as presently

          4  written, it is in the best interest of the City of

          5  New York t abandon the concept of registering

          6  journeyman along with all other related provisions.

          7                 With the exception of journeyman

          8  registration, I fully support the adoption of the

          9  International Building Code.

         10                 (Written testimony submitted for the

         11  record by Joe Reich, New York State Office of

         12  Advocate for Persons with Disabilities)

         13                 This Office is in full support of New

         14  York City's adoption of the International Family of

         15  Codes.

         16                 New York City has become synonymous

         17  with offering the best, and the Family of

         18  International Codes meets this expectation.

         19                 What do the International Family of

         20  Codes offer?

         21                 Technical support

         22                 Enhancements to meet New York City's

         23  needs

         24                 Uniform approach to accessibility

         25  issues throughout New York
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          2                 Incorporates the latest provisions

          3  found in ADA and fair housing

          4                 Easy to read format

          5                 It's all there, no need to reinvent

          6  the wheel.

          7                 I would be happy to answer any

          8  questions.

          9                 (Written testimony submitted for the

         10  record by William Scott Copp, President, New York

         11  State Building Officials Conference, Inc.)

         12                 As the President of the New York

         13  State Building Officials Conference, I represent

         14  over 2,000 municipal building code officials and

         15  fire officials across New York State.

         16                 I would like to voice my support for

         17  your adoption of Intro. Bill No. 478A and the Model

         18  Code Program.  The adoption of Intro. Bill 478A and

         19  the Model Code Program will bring the City of New

         20  York in line with the remainder of the State and

         21  under the basic provisions of the International

         22  Building Code.

         23                 In my mind, this potentially historic

         24  action actually began at least five years ago with

         25  the participation of the New York City Department of
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          2  Buildings in the modification of the International

          3  Energy Conservation Code to produce what is now the

          4  Energy Conservation Construction Code of New York

          5  State.  I participated in that process with the New

          6  York City Department of Buildings staff and was

          7  impressed by the process which allowed

          8  representatives from a broad spectrum of the

          9  potentially impacted parties to have a stake in the

         10  decision- making process.

         11                 I understand the City of New York has

         12  undertaken a similar process to develop Intro. Bill

         13  No. 478A and the Model Code Program, and that there

         14  is widespread support amongst those stakeholders.

         15                 Your support of the work of these

         16  many stakeholders representing a broad cross section

         17  of interests within the City has the potential to

         18  provide the City with the opportunity to approve the

         19  construction of building utilizing the very best of

         20  building construction technology, building

         21  construction safety, mechanical code technology,

         22  fire code technology, and fire code safety that have

         23  been compiled from across the country.

         24                 I strongly urge the Committee on

         25  Housing and Buildings and the City Council to move
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          2  forward with the process to adopt Intro. Bill No.

          3  478A and the Model Code Program.

          4                 Within the City of New York there are

          5  thousands of architects, professional engineers,

          6  design firms, and businesses that support their

          7  activities through the use of building codes. These

          8  professionals rely not only on work within the City,

          9  but also work within the greater New York State area

         10  and the surrounding states.  I believe the action

         11  you are considering has the potential to bring jobs

         12  to the City, to bring work for the architects,

         13  professional engineering firms, and all of the

         14  people who rely on them for their income.

         15                 The New York State Building Officials

         16  Conference and its affiliated Chapters across the

         17  State provide hundreds of hours of training annually

         18  to its members. These training hours are mandatory

         19  throughout the rest of the State.  They are required

         20  in order to keep the Code Enforcement Officials

         21  current with recent technology changes, changes

         22  within the regulations and to provide answers to

         23  frequently encountered deficiencies found during

         24  field inspections and plan review.

         25                 The International Code offers
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          2  hundreds of hours of training opportunities to Code

          3  Officials and design professionals to allow them to

          4  keep their skills finely tuned.  The opportunity to

          5  cross train with Code Officials from across the

          6  State and across the country is an invaluable

          7  resource that is provided to the Code Officials

          8  within New York State.  This will be an opportunity

          9  lost for the City and a loss for the rest of the

         10  State if the City were to adopt a code that was

         11  inconsistent with the rest of the State and many

         12  other jurisdictions across the country.

         13                 The City of New York has a long-

         14  standing history of being a leader.  The passage of

         15  Intro. Bill No. 478A and the Model Code Program

         16  provide a path to the continuation of this proud

         17  tradition.

         18                 (Written testimony submitted for the

         19  record by James W. Guinan, P.E., Fire Protection

         20  Technical Committee)

         21                 I fully support Intro. No. 478A,

         22  Update of the New York City Building Code (NYCBC).

         23                 This legislation will replace the

         24  current NYCBC with a new code based on the 2003

         25  version of the International Building Code (IBC).
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          2  The IBC is used in most jurisdictions of the United

          3  States.

          4                 This will open New York City to

          5  construction methods and systems which are currently

          6  being used, and have been proven successful

          7  throughout the United States.  This will result in

          8  cost savings for construction within New York City.

          9                 The Fire Protection Technical

         10  Committee, as well as the other committees, has

         11  worked hard to modify the IBC to maintain the level

         12  of safety in the current NYCBC.

         13                 Our members have been working

         14  diligently since August, 2003 to carefully review

         15  the IBC- 2003 and compare it to the current NYCBC.

         16  I have great respect for the NYCBC, since many of

         17  its provisions were either the result of tragedies,

         18  or address special conditions which occur in New

         19  York City's dense urban and residential construction

         20  environment.  We have preserved this "history" in

         21  the form of modifications to the standard IBC

         22  language.

         23                 I urge you to vote for the proposed

         24  Intro. No. 478A.

         25                 (Written testimony submitted for the
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          2  record by Ronald S. Berger, Executive Director,

          3  Subcontractors Trade Association)

          4                 I am unable to testify at the public

          5  hearing on November 30, 2004 on Intro. No. 467 and

          6  Intro. No. 368, and I would like to have you read

          7  the following into the record:

          8                 My name is Ronald S. Berger, and I am

          9  Executive Director of the Subcontractors Trade

         10  Association, Inc., and we represent approximately

         11  350 subcontractor firms dealing with every disciple

         12  (sic) in the construction industry.

         13                 I am a graduate Electrical Engineer

         14  and have been a member of the National Fire

         15  Protection Association (NFPA) for over 25 years, and

         16  have served on the Technical Committees such as the

         17  National Fire Alarm Code (NFPA 72) and Life Safety

         18  Code (NFPA 101).

         19                 I participated in the creation of

         20  NFPA 5000 Building Construction and Safety Code.  I

         21  have also been an active member for 14 years on the

         22  NYC Fire Alarm Code Revision Committee and have

         23  spent the last 14 months working on modifying the

         24  International Building Code (IBC) to meet the unique

         25  needs of NYC.
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          2                 NFPA 5000 (Intro. No. 368) is a good

          3  building code, but has not been reviewed and

          4  modified to meet the needs of NYC. Therefore, our

          5  association is recommending that the City Council

          6  adopt the International Building Code (Intro. No.

          7  478A) as modified by Model Code Taskforce.

          8                 (Written testimony submitted for the

          9  record by John Bower, ABCO Peerless Sprinkler

         10  Corporation)

         11                 Chairwoman Provenzano, Members of the

         12  Housing and Buildings Committee:

         13                 My name is John Bower.  I am Vice

         14  President of the ABCO Peerless Sprinkler

         15  Corporation, one of the largest sprinkler

         16  contractors operating in the New York City

         17  metropolitan area, Chairperson of the Sprinkler

         18  Committee of the Mechanical Contractors Association

         19  of New York, Treasurer of the New York Fire

         20  Sprinkler Contractors Association, a member of the

         21  New York City Department of Buildings Master

         22  Plumbers and Fire Suppression Piping Contractors

         23  License Board, Operations and Policy SubCommittee, a

         24  member of the FDNY Industry Advisory Board for Life

         25  Safety and Co Chair of the IBC Model Building Code
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          2  Fire Protection Technical Committee.

          3                 In addition, I have previously

          4  participated in the 1991 re- write of Reference

          5  Standards RS 17- 1 and 17- 2, the current reference

          6  standards for Standpipe and Sprinkler Installations

          7  in New York City,  And in the writing of Reference

          8  Standards RS 17- 2A and RS 17- 2B, the current

          9  reference standards for the installation of

         10  sprinklers in residential buildings up to six floors

         11  in height.

         12                 I submit to you today written

         13  testimony with regard to Intro. No. 478A, a bill to

         14  adopt certain Administrative and Technical

         15  provisions of a New York City Building Code based

         16  upon the Model Codes developed by the International

         17  Codes Council and to establish a timeframe for the

         18  adoption of the remaining provisions and periodic

         19  updating of the New York City Building Code.

         20                 The International Building Code has

         21  been adopted in 44 states and in the District of

         22  Columbia and by the Department of Defense.  The

         23  International Residential Code has been adopted in

         24  44 states and the District of Columbia.

         25                 The International Codes Group is a
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          2  fully integrated code, reaching outside of itself

          3  only for nationally recognized referenced standards.

          4                 Perhaps, as important as the quality

          5  of the model code used as a framework, is the

          6  quality of its review, modification and adoption

          7  process.

          8                 Intro. No. 478A recognizes a

          9  currently ongoing process where the International

         10  Codes Group is being reviewed line by line by

         11  various technical committees, under the auspices of

         12  the Department of Buildings, with modifications

         13  recommended by such committees to recognize the

         14  unique nature of New York City, as no model code

         15  purports itself to be a High Density Urban

         16  Environment Code.  This bill establishes a process

         17  for updating of the code in a three- year cycle.

         18                 Intro. No. 478A and its provisions

         19  for adoption of the ICC Codes Group and the

         20  codification of the review, adoption and the

         21  updating process should be your choice for the

         22  future of New York City.

         23                 My only concern with this bill are

         24  the provisions included in Sections 209 through 212

         25  of the proposed code regarding "registered
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          2  journeyman."

          3                 My concern with regard to these

          4  provisions is how journeyman registration will be

          5  utilized.  The language of the current bill makes

          6  journeyman registration a condition precedent, in

          7  most cases, to obtaining a Plumbing or Master Fire

          8  Suppression Piping Contractor license.

          9                 It is imperative that the term

         10   "journeyman" not be so interpreted or defined as to

         11  preclude individuals who have not attended a State

         12  registered union apprenticeship program but who have

         13  other provable and appropriate plumbing or fire

         14  suppression piping experience from becoming New York

         15  City Department of Buildings registered journeymen.

         16                 The provisions contained in sections

         17  210.` and 212.1 of this bill, for licensed employer

         18  certification of experience for such individuals who

         19  have not completed a State certified apprenticeship

         20  program, do not afford sufficient protection for

         21  otherwise qualified persons whose employer may not

         22  want, for self interest reasons, to certify that

         23  experience in order to preclude that individual from

         24  registration and ultimately, licensing.

         25                 This would effectively and
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          2  artificially reduce the pool of registered

          3  individuals, with no legally mandated

          4  responsibilities such as those required of Licensed

          5  Contractors, for example legal liability and

          6  insurance.  These individuals that licensed

          7  contractors may ultimately be required to employ on

          8  worksites, a requirement that would further

          9  contribute to the already escalating costs of

         10  construction in New York City.

         11                 One of the goals of the Model Code

         12  Program was t be cost neutral.  These provisions for

         13  journeyman registration have the potential of

         14  creating an artificial shortage of registerable

         15  individuals that will be anything but cost neutral.

         16                 I recommend that the concept of

         17  registering journeymen be abandoned.

         18                 The above concern aside, I reiterate

         19  that Intro. No. 478A and the adoption of the

         20  International Model Codes and associated processes

         21  is the right choice for New York City.

         22                 (Written testimony submitted for the

         23  record by Ronald E. Piester, Director, Division of

         24  Code Enforcement and Administration, New York State

         25  Department of State)

                                                            189

          1  COMMITTEE ON HOUSING AND BUILDINGS

          2                 Speaker Miller, Chairperson

          3  Provenzano, and Members of the Committee on Housing

          4  and Buildings, thank you for the opportunity to

          5  submit the following remarks on behalf of the New

          6  York State Department of State in strong support of

          7  Intro. No. 478A.

          8                 Over the past three years, the New

          9  York City Department of Buildings has led an

         10  extraordinary effort to prepare for the adoption of

         11  a new and dynamic building code for the City of New

         12  York.

         13                 Following the findings and

         14  recommendations of the Mayor's Advisory Commission,

         15  Commissioner Lancaster and Assistant Commissioner

         16  Penzi assembled New York's brightest design,

         17  construction, and regulatory professionals who

         18  contributed countless hours of time, energy, and

         19  expertise to develop the bill before you today.

         20                 By passing Intro. No. 478A, the City

         21  Council will create a regulatory framework that

         22  promotes economic development and enhances building

         23  safety for the benefit of the citizens of this great

         24  City for today and for the future.

         25                 The City of New York is recognized
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          2  around the world as a leader in the pursuit of

          3  public safety.  To the members of the Committee on

          4  Housing and Buildings, I encourage you to continue

          5  your leadership by passing Intro. No. 478A to the

          6  full membership of the City Council for approval.

          7                 (Written testimony submitted for the

          8  record by Frank M. Clemente, Jr., Technical

          9  Director, Geotechnical Engineering)

         10                 Honorable Members, City Council of

         11  New York:

         12                 For almost two years, about 400 of

         13  the best, brightest and experienced engineers,

         14  architects and other highly qualified professionals

         15  have reviewed, revised, and remodified the

         16  International Building Code to improve its scope,

         17  requirements, details, and wording in order to make

         18  it applicable and appropriate for adoption to New

         19  York City.

         20                 The current New York City code may be

         21  in parts somewhat outdated, but in other parts it is

         22  unique, and addresses factors such as our local

         23  geology, local seismic considerations, construction

         24  control, inspection needs, and so on.

         25                 We have retained, sometimes with
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          2  modification, those requirements from the existing

          3  code that are still relevant to our City and we have

          4  removed those requirement and passages that no

          5  longer pertain or are suitably covered by the

          6  International Code.

          7                 With the support, encouragement, and

          8  hard work of Commissioners Patricia Lancaster and

          9  Marzio Penzi, and with the City Council's approval,

         10  New York City will have a new and comprehensive

         11  building code that retains the best of the

         12  International Building Code and our existing New

         13  York City Code.

         14                 It will be a well- integrated

         15  document melding together and enhancing the best of

         16  both codes for the safety and security of all New

         17  Yorkers and its many visitors.

         18                 Therefore, please give Intro. No.

         19  478A your fullest and favorable consideration.

         20                 I thank you very much.

         21                 (Written testimony submitted for the

         22  record by Herbert. L. Mandel, New York City Model

         23  Code Residential Subcommittee)

         24                 Ladies and Gentlemen:

         25                 My name is Herbert Mandel.  I am an
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          2  architect in practice in New York City, and a member

          3  of the American Institute of Architects.

          4                 I am here today as the Chair of the

          5  Residential Sub Committee of the Model Code

          6  Commission, and thank you for the opportunity to

          7  appear in favor of Intro. No. 478A, adoption of a

          8  New York City Building Code based upon the Model

          9  Codes developed by the International Code Council.

         10                 Under the watchful eyes of

         11  Commissioner Lancaster and Assistant Commissioner

         12  Penzi, my committee, as one element within a group

         13  of over 400 building professionals, has been

         14  reviewing and working with ICC for the past 24

         15  months.  Their input and ongoing technical support

         16  have been enlightening and invaluable.  As a result

         17  of our deliberations, I can report to you that

         18  Intro. No. 478A, the adoption of a new and updated

         19  NYC Building Code, based on the International

         20  Building Code, has the support and backing of my

         21  committee.

         22                 This position has been arrived at

         23  after due diligence which included scrutiny, debate,

         24  and evaluation of each of the elements of both the

         25  International Building Code, which is the basic code
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          2  document published by the ICC, and the International

          3  Residential Code, which applies to one and two-

          4  family dwellings, t determine their applicability

          5  for use in this City.

          6                 This process has been undertaken by

          7  as knowledgeable and dedicated a body of experts as

          8  one could imagine assembling. It includes

          9  architects, engineers, and contractors, as well as

         10  representatives of the Fire Department, the Building

         11  Department, housing agencies, the development

         12  community, and code professionals.  It would be hard

         13  to bring together a more diversified, competent, or

         14  committed group of individuals to engage the many

         15  issues which may be addressed in this undertaking,

         16  and it has been a privilege to work with them.

         17                 During the past two years, the

         18  Residential Committee has met, at a minimum,

         19  monthly.  Panels assigned to special tasks have met

         20  independently of the main body.  Additionally, we

         21  have had technical training sessions and joint

         22  meetings with a number of the other subcommittees to

         23  discuss matters of mutual concern.  Our

         24  investigations have led us to conclude that, in

         25  selecting the International Building Code, the
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          2  Mayoral Commission clearly made the right decision

          3  for New York City.

          4                 The Residential Committee has an

          5  assignment which is somewhat different than most of

          6  the other panels.  We were given the task of

          7  focusing on any and all aspects of the main body of

          8  the code which will impact on and mold residential

          9  structures.  In that role, we have had free license

         10  to comment on and propose modifications to any part

         11  of the document which will make it appropriate for

         12  ruse in what we will all agree is "The City".

         13                 Additionally, we were charged with

         14  the responsibility for insuring that application of

         15  the code will result in buildings which will be safe

         16  and, at the same time, economically viable.  That

         17  mandate has been the driving force in our

         18  deliberations.

         19                 Furthermore, we are devoted t the

         20  production of desperately needed affordable housing

         21  with, I might add, the full support of Commissioner

         22  Lancaster, and are scrutinizing every element of the

         23  code which will have a bearing on that issue.

         24                 The IBC family of codes is fast

         25  becoming a national standard for the construction of
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          2  buildings.  They are well organized, well written,

          3  technically competent, up to date, and supported by

          4  a large staff of trained professionals.

          5                 With the adoption of a New York City

          6  code based upon the IBC, we have concluded that,

          7  among other things, the recognition of new cost-

          8  effective materials and methods of construction

          9  inherent in the code, and its periodic updating

         10  process, will enable us to realize their use within

         11  the framework of safe and secure buildings.

         12                 With some discussion still to come,

         13  we are also looking forward to the facilitation of a

         14  low- rise prototype which has long been thought of

         15  as a much needed addition to the housing market for

         16  a segment of the community which is now grossly

         17  underserved.

         18                 In conclusion, I would like to

         19  reiterate my support of the adoption of a new

         20  building code for New York City based upon the IBC.

         21  What we are doing here is creating a code which will

         22  become a model for high- density cities across the

         23  country.  It will be a living document which will be

         24  reviewed every three years to assure its timelines

         25  and we will derive the benefit of a well established
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          2  and competent organization which will provide

          3  ongoing evaluation and support.

          4                 I sincerely believe that it is the

          5  right code for New York City, and I hope that you

          6  share my enthusiasm.

          7                 Thank you.

          8                 (Written testimony submitted for the

          9  record by the membership of the Building Owners and

         10  Managers Association of Greater New York (BOMA/NY)

         11                 The membership of the Building Owners

         12  and Management Association of Greater New York

         13  (BOMA/NY) represents over 400 million square feet of

         14  real estate, more than 3 million office occupants,

         15  and are responsible for over $1.5 billion in annual

         16  tax revenue.  Founded in 1967, BOMA/NY is federated

         17  with BOMA International, which was established in

         18  1907 and is comprised of 108 local associations with

         19  over 19,000 members who own or manage more than 9

         20  billion square feet of commercial properties.

         21                 As we testified on November 30,2004,

         22  the BOMA/NY organization is in full support of

         23  Intro. No. 478A and the International Building Code

         24  process.

         25                 We believe that the comprehensive
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          2  building code that has been developed by the

          3  International Code Council is a winning formula to

          4  replace the antiquated existing building code here

          5  in New York City.  It will cover public health and

          6  safety requirements under its umbrella.

          7                 We also fully support that fact that

          8  the new code, as proposed, will have the ability to

          9  be modified every three years making it dynamic and

         10  hopefully, a reflection of the latest and best

         11  published model codes that are available.

         12                 BOMA/NY thanks the City Council for

         13  the opportunity to express our opinion regarding

         14  this important matter.  We express our appreciation

         15  to the New York City Department of Buildings, and

         16  Commissioner Patricia Lancaster for her overall

         17  stewardship in endeavoring to update the current

         18  code.

         19                 We also express appreciation to Mayor

         20  Bloomberg for having the vision to start this

         21  process in the first place three years ago.

         22                 Finally, BOMA/NY thanks the hundreds

         23  of collective volunteers who comprised the various

         24  technical committees who selflessly donated

         25  literally thousands of unpaid hours of their time
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          2  towards one common objective: The advancement of

          3  this process and an improved building code.

          4                 (Hearing concluded at 1:00 p.m.)
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          3

          4

          5     STATE OF NEW YORK   )
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          9                 I, LENORE NAGLE, do hereby certify

         10  that the foregoing is a true and accurate transcript

         11  of the within proceeding.
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